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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Turnover
2001 I =72
2000 TN £287m
1999 I £242m
1938 £238m
1997 £223m
Profit before tax, goodwill and exceptional items
2001 £19.3m
2000 £24.9m
e ] £18.5m
1998 N £23.9m
1997 R  ©:0.5m
Earnings per share - basic before goodwill and exceptional items
2001 I 28.1p
2000 26.1p
1999 28.8p
1908 I 35.2p
1997 N

45.8p




Brammer is a feading Euronean industrial services group with
two core husinesses: Livingston and Brammer Industrial Services.

We provide, threugh Livingston, outsourced management
of technoloyy tools and related testing and measurement
services; and, through Brammer Industrial Services, the supply
of power transmission components, engineering and other
related industrial services.

Our two husinesses fuliif a pivetal rele hetween customers
and suppliers adding value to hoth through services of the
highest quality. Our strategy is to huild and develon these cere
husinesses hy broadening our range ol services and by
expanding yeographically in Eurene.

Brammer




2 CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Results. As indicated in the company’s announcement of 30 January 2002, our results
for 2001 reflect reasonable progress in our industrial services business in markets which
began to deteriorate towards the end of the vear and a very difficult sccond half in
Livingston where the unprecedented decline in the telecom market has been compounded
by poor residual values experienced in our computer products business.

Group turnover for the year was up 30% at £372.3 million (2000 £287.3 million),
with acquisitions accounting for 23% of this growth. Turnover at Livingston advanced
to £131.6 million (2000 £113.4 million} in the year, while revenues at Brammer
Industrial Services increased to £240.7 million (2000 £173.9 million).

Profit before tax, goodwill and exceptional items declined by 21% to £19.3 million,
and earnings per share before goodwill and exceptional items declined by 22% to 28.1p.
Cash flow from operations improved to £70.2 million {2000 £65.7 million). The significant
downturn in the telecom market and weakness in the second hand computer market forced
us to make a total inventory impairment provision in Livingston of £22.7 million. In
addition we have taken a provision of £1.0 million in Brammer Industrial Services to exit
our spindles business. After these exceptional charges the group posted a net loss before
tax of £6.8 million (2000 £23.9 million profit) and basic loss per share of 14.3p (2000
35.0p profit).

As conditions worsened across a number of our markets in the second half of
the year we concentrated on cash production and cost reduction and in the last quarter
generated £18.9 million of operating cash flow.

As at 31 December 2001, we had £28.9 million more goodwill on the balance sheet
following our acquisition of THEF; stock, debtors and creditors are commensurately higher,
as is the £15.0 million of shares to be issued as final sertlement for the outstanding 49%
of THE The increase in creditors arising from THF is offset by our capital expenditure
creditors which are £6.8 million lower in 2001 reflecting our much reduced capital spend
on rental assets in the final quarter, along with the change in tax provision. Tangible
assets are £18.1 million lower, largely reflecting the substantially higher impairment
provision at the end of 2001, Ner debt is £44.1 million higher due to acquisitions and
an increase in our gross cost of rental assets.

Livingston. During 2000 and the first half of 2001 we enjoyed rapidly growing markets
in Livingston, particularly in telecoms. During this period we grew our business with the
major telecoms companies, developing our key accounts on a pan-European basis, We
invested heavily in telecoms test and measurement equipment to meet the rental demands
of our customers. There was a moderate decline in demand for telecoms test equipment
in the third quarter and by this time we had already reduced investment in anticipation
of weaker markets.

In our computer products business revenues generally held up well in difficult market
conditions, though we experienced somewhat weaker rental demand, particulacly for Sun
equipment, in the fourth quarter. The major impact on this business was the continuing
weakness in the second hand computer market which, despite our extensive development
of second user channels, made the disposal of thesc assets more difficnlr.

Despite the macro economic environment and the sigmficant problems of many of
our custorners, our turnover grew 31% in the first half and 4% in the second half, both
compared to the 2000 equivalent.

Total rental investment in the first half was £50.2 million whilst the second haif
rental investment reduced to £21.6 million, of which only £3.0 million was invested in
the fourth quarter. The slump in demand in October, however, was far greater than we
had anticipated. As a result of this downturn we ended the vear with an excess of rental
inventory over and above that demanded by current market conditions.




Our calibration and measuremcent services business {incorporating our equipment
management services contracts) performed well throughout the year with revenues
growing 29% and operating profit return on sales increasing to 6%.

Brammer Industrial Services. Market conditions in Brammer Industrial Services were
positive on the continent until the third quarter when we began to see deterioration in
Germany. We saw a downturn in the markets elsewhere on the continent in the fourth
quarter. In the UK our industrial services business performed well in market conditions
which had deteriorated even further during the vear. Our investment in additional sales
and marketing in the UK resulted in this business returning to modest growth in sales and
operating profits in the final quarter,

Turnover, including THF in Germany which was acquired on 2 January 2001, was
up 38% at £240.7 million, whilst operating profit before goodwill and exceptional items
of £13.3 million, {including the contribution from associates) was unchanged. THF had
turnover of £61.6 million and profit before goodwill and interest of £2.8 million,

All our businesses in continental Europe improved profitability. Our businesses in
France, Spain and Germany, together with our associated businesses in Benelux and
Portugal, all improved profitability while our UK business returned to sales growth in
the second half of the year after a long period of decline.

Dividend. As a mark of confidence in the future and the ability of the group to generate
cash your board recommends a maintained final dividend of 12.6 pence which, if
approved, will be paid on 3 july 2002 to shareholders on the register on 31 May 2002,
The total dividend for the year of 19.3p would be 1% higher than the previous vear and
would be ¢covered 1.5 times by earnings before goodwill and exceptional charges. The
board is satisfied with this level of cover at this point in the business cycle. However, it
is the board’s intention that dividend cover should be higher in future years.

Board changes. In November 2001 I took over the non-execurive chairmanship from
Robert Ffoulkes-Jones. Robert had been a member of the Brammer board since 1981
serving initially as finance director then chief executive and becoming chairman in 1998,

We are indebted to Robert for his contribution over this period and wish him well in his
retirement.

People. During the year our people worked hard o grow and improve our business in
increasingly difficult markets. I wish to thank everyone for their continued commitment
and for the many significant achievements which they made in 2001.

Current trading. We sec no improvement in market conditions as we enter the new year.
Trading to date is in line with management expectations, The priorities for 2002 are to
focus on the fundamentals of cost and cash control and to put in place measures ro
reduce our risk and exposure to volatile markets. We also intend to extract greater
synergies from recent acquisitions and will further exploit these to gain market share.

David Dunn




4 CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Overview. Operating profit before exceptional provisions and goodwill was broadly as
anticipated following the downturn in business in the final quarter of cthe year. In both
divisions we worked hard to optimise all business opportunities and to prepare for
difficult trading conditions. We expect these conditions to prevail through most of 2002,

We have cut back significantly on capital and rental asset expenditure and are carefully
managing the cost base.

Strategy - Livingston. In order to improve the risk profile of the Livingston business we
plan to grow our services businesses further while seeking higher margins from our rental
activities where furure investment and development will be more measured. However,
the short-term priority in Livingston continues to be one of reduction of financial nsk
by liquidating excess inventory and controlling costs in a difficult market.

Locking to the medium term, the value proposition of Livingston in reducing the
cost of owning high technology tools through outsourcing ts now better understood by
our customers. Our strengthened competitive position, the market share gains in 2001
and the development of new territories will restore good medium term growth prospects

for Livingston once the current onerous macro economic factors in the telecom industry
have eased.

Strategy - Brammer Industrial Services. With the exception of Iraly, we believe we now
have the appropriate European geographic coverage to service the rapidly increasing number
of customers who are looking for one supplier with a wide range of power transmisston
components and consistent value added services to meet all their pan-European needs.
Qur overall objective is to take 35% of the European MRO market for our products
and services. Qur best estimate is that we currently have around 7% market share.

We are at an early stage in transforming our business from a collection of individual
national suppliers into a truly integrated pan-European industrial services business. We
have now identified the synergies available to us and the resultant savings in purchasing,
logistics, systems and other back office costs. Now that our geographic coverage 1s in
place, our focus will move to these cost saving opportunities.

We continue to histen to our customers and offer flexible cost effective solutions 1o
their needs while reducing our supplier base and focusing on selecting partners who can
supply all our needs across our entire geographic coverage.

Last, but not least, we will continue to hire, train, develop and retain the best people
in our industry.

Outlook. We have now resized the value of the Livingseon inventory to the current market
demand. Cur level of capital expenditure for 2002 will depend upon market demand,
but is anticipated to be substantially below that of 2001. We shall continue to emphasise
the services part of the business by seizing all opportunities to develop long term, stable
cantracts as we grow our calibration and equipment management revenues and profits.

In Brammer Industrial Services, our UK business is now growing, our synergies are
providing increased gross profits and our continental businesses, although experiencing
difficult trading conditions, are leaders in their markets and enjoy significant competitive
advantage. Major corporate accounts recognise our strength and are increasingly looking
for a consistent pan-Furopean offering. Our cost base is under control and our capital
expenditure has been reduced on the assumption of continuing difficult trading conditions
in 2002. We have budgeted for sales to stay at quarter four levels throughour 2002 and
have sized the cost base accordingly. We believe that we will reap significant benefits as
and when there is a recovery in market conditions.

Rey27”

lan Fraser




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Turnover

Profit before interest, tax, goodwill and exceptional items
Profit before tax, goodwill and exceptional items

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Net debt
Shareholders’ equity

Earnings per share

Before amortisation of goodwill and exceptional items
Diluted

Dividend per share

2001 2000
£'000 £'000 Change
372,284 287,326 +30%
24,402 26,899 -9%
19,305 24,431 -21%
70,222 65,682 +7%
{82,321) (38,190}
78,410 79,275
pence pence
28.1 36.1 -22%
(13.2) 34.9 -138%
193 A +1%

JUr revenues

of
side the UK

We continue to develop the geoyrathic diversity of our business. In the last three
years (e percentaye of our business ontsiile the UK has increasell from 38% 1o 68%.
Ne ome country now contributes more than 32% of our revenues, whereas in 1998

the UK represented 62% of total revenue.




6 OPERATING REVIEW
LIVINGSTON

Livingston outsources the management of high technology tools, equipment and related
services for global companies through a variety of management services, asset management
and rental programs. Qur customers cover a wide spectrum of industries including telecom,
aerospace, defence, computing, automotive, financial services and general blue chip
companies with operations across the globe. Qver 80% of our business is in continental
Europe and over 70% of our customers are directly or indirectly involved in telecoms,
software development or Internet industries. The significant decline in our markets had
a major impact on our performance.

During this difficult year we did, however, make further progress in developing
our strategic and competitive position, This is primarily a result of an improvement in
our market share and new customers outsourcing to Livingston.

Demonstrating the unique competitive advantage of being a full service, pan-European
outsourcing partner, we won European-wide contracts with Nortel Networks and Lucent
Technologies, We further extended our services to Sun, IBM, Marconi and Alcatel and
introduced NEC and Sony as new customers to the group.

Our current outsourcing contracts with Cisco and Thales in France also made
excellent progress. Our contract with KPN performed less satisfactorily and is forecast
to reduce in activity in 2002,

During the year, we expanded into the Czech Republic and Italy, although as new
start-ups, neither of these operations added significant contribution in 2001. We also
extended our international {outside of western Europe) business through the international
division that we started in 2000, developing business in eastern Europe, Malaysia, Flong
Kong and China.

We made progress in rolling out our common European IT system, which now
networks seven out of our ten countries of operation. The remaining three countries will
be on line during 2002. Our unique ability to offer an integrated European solution,
with a local country interface to our pan-European customers, is a key competitive
advantage of Livingston.

We made no further acquisitions during 2001. Climars & Sapratin and Somelec,

acquired in 2000, performed above expectations and were satisfactorily integrated into
the division.

e,

V<

Mel Porter




service revenue no

Our husiness activitles Include rental of test and measurement and computer eguinment covering
short-term rental te lony-term contracted rental, ofien as part of a wider outsourcing asset
maragement contract, In addition we have wotked hard to develop our longer-term contracted
service revenues, including outsourced calibration services contracts and testing aml asset
manaygement programmes. In 1998 rental revenues renresented 80% of our total wrnover, with
services representing just 20%. Total revenue grew 72% between 1998 and 2001 and, during

this perlod, services revenue has risen to 37% of total revenues. Our alm is to grow the seruvices
elemem of our husiness to 50% of our tolal revenues, therehy ensuring that the profit and cash
flow arising from services will cover the needs for capltal Investment i rental assets.




8 OPERATING REVIEW
BRAMMER INDUSTRIAL
SERVICES

We are Europe’s clear market leader for the supply of bearings, mechanical and clectrical
power transmission, seals, gearboxes and value added engineering and support services.
Qur 2,040 employees service our 105,000 customers through our 230 branch network.
Berween our four major national distribution centres and our branch network, we hold
an inventory of £44.7 million covering 500,000 product types.

During the year we continued to develop the synergies available to us as Furope’s
leading supplier of MRO products and services. Our strategy of reducing our supplier
base to consolidate more purchases with a smaller number of suppliers proceeded well.
Qur Insite programme developed slightly slower than hoped and we ended the year with
27 Insites in the UK, two in France, and one about to be signed in Germany. We also
developed our European corporate account activity, We have identified 39 customers who
already trade with us in three or more countries, currently representing £23.2 million of
revenues, where we have an opportunity to grow the business substantially by developing
pan-European relarionships.

Our goal is to be seen as local by our customers in terms of sales and technical
support, whilst at the same time, being able to provide, more cost effectively than our

competition, the scale and support of being Furope’s largest supplier of mechanical
components and value added services,

UK. Excluding our discontinued spindles business, full year sales and operating profits
were down by 2% and 26% respectively when compared to 2000. A majority of the
turnover shortfall was in respect of our engineering business {BSL Engineering). Gross
margins improved.

Early in the year we began a significant investment programme in additional sales
and marketing resource in order o take a larger share of a declining market. Despite the
worsening market, this investment is beginning to bear fruit. BSL, our core business,
began to show sales per day growth over 2000 in May and, other than in September,
that growth has continued since. This encouraging upward trend reverses the slow but
steady decrease experienced over the last four years.

Our national distribution centre in Wolverhampton, which was opened in the
Summer of 2000, has improved stock availability and response times to customers. We
are now in a position to begin improving stock turns across the whole product range.

France. Roulement Service continued to benefir from the economies of scale and synergies
brought by the acquisitions of Sciam and Marine Industries in the first half of 2000. Full
vear sales showed 8% growth whilst annual operating profits were up by 17%. A second

Insite was won. Since September we have seen trading conditions deteriorate and sales
growth has been minimal.

Iberia, In Spain, Rodamientos had another year of good progress. Sales growth was
modest, particularly in the last quarter, but operating profit as a percentage of sales
increased for the third year running.

In the Autumn, we acquired the Rabinad group, a five branch business situated in
Catalonia, where Rodamientos had only a limited presence. Integration of the business
into Rodamientos is progressing well.

In Portugal, Rolamentos, of which we own 25%, saw a small sales decline across all

product groups other than bearings. However, good cost control resulted in an operating
profit increase of 18%.




We have identiled 39 customers who trade with us in thrée or more counttes. In 2000 we
enfoved £19.1 miliion In revenues irom 151 Separate iocations from these customers. Following

a concerted international account campaign in 2001 we enjoved £23.2 million in revenies

from these acceunts (£0.9 milllan arising from acquisitions), a growth over 2080 of 18%, showing
the Increasing attractiveness to our customers of our extensive pan-European presence.

O usiness




10 OPERATING REVIEW
BRAMMER INDUSTRIAL
SERVICES

Germany. THF exceeded our expectations for the year. However, it was a year of two
halves. First half sales showed double-digit growth, whereas the second half showed a
small decrease as economic activity slowed. Operating profits reflected the high level of
fixed cost in the business and return on sales for first and second halves were 5% and 4%
respectively. Good progress has been made in expanding the product range. We purchased
Carl Fischer in order to gain a presence in Hamburg.

Our acquisition of THF has enabled us to expand our geographic coverage into
the Czech Republic and Hungary. It has also given us a more dominant European marker
leadership position and has given us a better balance between continental Europe and UK
suppliers thus allowing us to re-align our pan-European preferred supplier selection. While
the fact that a considerable percentage of THF's sales are related to the German machine
tool industry will make the first half of 2002 very difficult, we see many opportunities
to profitably grow our business in Germany, the Czech Republic and Hungary.

Benelux. KINS, headquartered in the Netherlands, made good progress in 2001. Turnover
growth was 6% and operating profit soared by over 30% reflecting reduced selling,
distribution and administration costs in Belgium following tast year’s consolidation of three
branches into one, Gross margins were marginally down reflecting tough competition in
Belgium, Austria and Germany.

In March we acquired Anderlecht Bearing Services, a one branch business based
in Brussels. This business has specific expertise in components for the steel industry and
will be used to grow our business in the French speaking part of Belgium.

S

David Hollywood




Ahealthy spread across market segments provides strength through diversity

<

with over 100,000 Eurone;
the top 15 accounts is

of ourjtotal turnover in

A Automotive

B Construction
C Engineering
D Food

E Packaging

F Paper

G Petro-chemical
H Stee|

1 Uilities

J Distribution

K Machine ool
L Pharmaceutical
M Maintenance

ny ope country

With over 100,000 custome!s in the UK, France, Germany and Spain, the diverse nature
of our custemer hase means that the maximum nercentage of turnover represented
hy the total turaover of the tap 15 customers 1n Any coantry is Just 21%.




12 FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview. As described in the chairman’s statement and the operating reviews, 2001 started
strongly but has been progressively more challenging.

Turnover. Our turnover has grown by 30% in the vear of which continental Europe accounted
for 8% organic growth and 23% acquisitive growth and the UK a 1% fall.

Acquisitions. Our acquisitions have performed well in the year, delivering an operating profit
before goodwill of £2.9 million — somewhat better than we had expected - although the second
half has seen more difficulr operating conditions after delivering £1.7 million in the first half.

Goodwill. We have added £31.3 million of goodwill to the balance sheet, mainly through the
acquisition of THF at the start of 2001 {£29.3 million).

Profit before interest. Profit before interest, goodwill and exceptional costs was down 9% in the
year at £24.4 million; Livingston was down 18% on in¢reased turnover and Brammer Industrial
Services was unchanged (down 22% before acquisitions on marginally higher turnover), Profit
before interest and goodwill but after exceptional costs was down 97% at £0.7 million.

Exceptional charges. The calculation of the overall rental asset impairment provision is based
on the long-standing provisioning policy within the group. The exceptional element arises from
the significant deterioration in both rental and re-sale markets in the fourth quarter. In normal
conditions we would have been able to dispose of our surplus equipment and generate cash
without incurring the level of losses now being provided.

The exceptional charge of £22.7 million was calculated as the excess charge required
{based on current rental and re-sale levels) over the “normal” impairment as experienced in
prior years, along with the equivalent reduction in the profit on sale of rental assets. Had the
exceptional item classification applied at the half year then £1.4 million of the £22.7 million
full year charge would have fallen in the first half of the vear leaving £21.3 million to fall in the
second half.

In the second half of 2001 we incurred £24.3 million of straight-line rental asset depreciation
and increased the impairment provision to £24.3 million ar the end of 2001 {£3.9 million at the
end of June 2001) against a year-end nct book value (before impairment) of rental assets of
£83.7 million.

Brammer Industrial Services decided to cxit its spindles operation and a £1.0 million charge
has been provided.

Trading during the year. Group turnover grew vear on year, although the UK fell by 1% overall
after a very difficult fourth quarter for Livingston UK which more than eliminated the advance
made by Brammmer Industrial Services in the UK in the second half. Our underlying profit before
goodwill, interest, excepticnal items and tax in the second half was £8.4 million — only 53% of
the first half. Livingston half year split of turnover and profit was as follows.

First half 2001 Second half 2001 Full year 2001

£'m £'m m

Turnover 67.1 645 1318
Profit * 8.1 3.0 11.1

* Profit before goodwill, interest, tax and exceptional items adjusted by £1.4 million for the
reclassification of the impaizment provision as an exceptional item in the tirst half.

Livingston turnover is down £2.6 million in the second half; combined with £2.7million
more depreciation arising from the larger rental pool, the lower turnover results in an adjusted
profit before goodwill, interest, exceptional items and tax down £5.1 million in the second
half. Most fundamentally, the group has suffered at the bottom of the cycle from the heavy
operational gearing present in our rental business. Our calibration business has enjoyed a step
change in profitability in its third year of substantial turnover growth.

Brammer Industrial Services turnover is down £8.5 million in the second half; the
corresponding drop in gross profit results in a profit before goodwill and interest £2.3 million
lower in the second half. The drop in turnover in the second half is consistent with the seasonalicy
seen in previous years. Brammer Industrial Services has benefited from lower operational gearing
and has been able to deliver a reasonable result as conditions have worsened during the year.

Interest. The intercst charge for the year of £5.1 million is double the charge in 2000 reflecting

our investmnent in THY at the beginning of January and increased rental asset inventories early
in the year,




Cash flow. The year started with the purchase of THF which was a major cash flow item. This
involved paying £15.6 million cash for 51% of the equity and attributing £15.0 million of shares
to be issued and £2.2 million of dividend as a deferred consideration as well as assuming £8.7
mitlion of debt; there was £29.3 million of goodwill associated with the transaction.

During the early part of the year we maintained our investrment in rental assets as the rental
income continued to grow. However, after the rental income peaked and our major purchase
commitments were subsequently completed, we have faced an increasingly ditficult environment
in which to generate cash via the sale of rental assets, in spite of our clear focus on it as a
priority. In the first half our disposal programme was marginally ahead of 2000 both in value
and profitability and continued into the third quarter. However, the fourth quarter has seen
much of the first three quarters’ profits on disposal reversed. Therefore, while we have to sustain
a rate of renewal in our rental asset base to be competitive, our rate of cash flow on all tangible
tixed asset expenditure has dropped 40% in the second half. This has been primarily helped
by reducing our expenditure on rental assets by £28.6 million while reducing our fixed asset
creditors by £6.8 million.

Net debt 1s £44.1 million higher than last year. [n addition to the acquisition of THF {£25.0
million cash outflow), funds were used to increase our gross investment in rental inventory by
£14.1 million. Howevet, after depreciation and impairment provisions, the net book value is
£18.9 million lower. We incurred a loss after tax of £6.8 million but maintained our dividend
trend, proposing a total dividend of £9.3 million in the year.

Treasury. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (‘EBITDA’) amounted to
£73.4 million for the year. We already had pooling of funds in France and the UK and have
added a German pool late in the year that should help us manage our funds more efficiently.

The companies in the group mostly trade within their domestic markets in their local
currency. Where companies trade into export markets this is generally at the behest of their
domestic customers who trade globally, Group companies account in their local currency, either
in sterling or euros, and at 31 December 2001 £76.2 million, 47% of the group’s tangible
operating assets, were held in sterling and £84.5 million, §3%, werc held in euros. We seek to
match the tangible operating assets denominated in euros with borrowings or derivative financial
instruments denominated in euros so as to minimise the translation risk to shareholders’ equity
while at the same timc taking advantage of the lower European interest costs.

The group does not enter into speculative currency transactions but from time to time will
use derivative financial instruments to hedge particular transactions back into the operating
company’s domestic currency. At 31 December 2001 the group matched its tangible net operating
assets of £84.5 million denominated in euros with euro borrowings and derivatives of £91.9

million, As a result, £85.8 million of our shareholders’ equity of £78.4 million was denominated
in sterling.

Net operating assets and financing by currency at 31 December 2001 werce as follows

Net operating assets Financing Net assets employed

Currency £'m £'m £'m
Sterling 76.2 9.6 85.8
Euro 84.5 (91.9) 7.4}
160.7 (82.3) 78.4

Yaxation 2.5 26 -
Dividends 6.0 6.0) -
Goodwill (45.0) 450 ~
119.1 {40.7) 78.4

We had net borrowings of £82.3 million ar 31 December 2001, This was 1.1 umes our EBITDA
and 2.5 times our tangible net worth, being our shareholders’ equity after deducting £44.9 million
of goodwill. We will continue to focus on husbanding cash.

Auditors. We welcomed PricewaterhouseCoopers as our external auditors this year and feel we
have already benefited from a fresh view of our business.

)

John Cumming




14 DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

David Dunn* ¢+ (age 57)

Non-executive chairman

Joined the Brammer board in November 2001,
After qualifying as a chartered accountant, his
early career was spent with BPB Industries ple,
Lex Service Group plc and Newman Industries
pic. He is also non-executive chairman of Scapa
Group plc, where he has served since 1987 as
finance director and chief executive prior to
his current appointment in 1999. He 15 also a
non-executive director of Croda International
ple, FirstGroup ple and 4imprint Group ple.

Chris Gonway * ¢ ¥ (age 57)

Independent non-executive director

Appointed to the beard in 1997. He was
chairman and chief executive of Digital
Equipment Co Ltd, director of IBM {UK) Lud,
vice president of Compaq Computer EMEA
BV and non-executive director of Granville ple.
Currently, he is chairman of Global People
Network Heldings PLC, Detica Group PLC and
Rarrigini & Rosso Ltd, and a non-executive
director of Pecaso Ltd.

John Cumming (age 56) Finance director
Appointed to the board in 1988. He is 2
certified accountant, Prior to joining the
company he was international finance director
with The Plessey Company plc for three years
and was finance director of Hawker Siddeley
Power Engineering Limited for six years.

Jean-Marie Fink {age 57} Director

Appointed to the board in 1994, He graduated
in economics from the University of Strasbourg
and joined INA France in 1968 in sales and
marketing. He is managing director of Roulement
Service S5.A., which he co-founded in 1974 and
was bought by Brammer in 1992,

lan Fraser ¢ (age 46) Chief executive
Appointed to the board in 1998. He has an
Oxford MA and a Harvard MBA. He held
appointments in sales, marketing and finance
with Exxon Corporation both in the UK and
USA. At Raychem Corporation he held senior
roles in sales, marketing, manufacturing and
general management. He became managing
director of Reliance Security Services Lid in
1991 and was appointcd their group managing
director in 1993,

% Remuneration committee
+ Aundi cornmittce
+ Nominations committee

David Hollywood (age 55) Director
Appointed to the board in 1991. He was
chief executive of Livingston berween 1991
and 1999 and then became chief executive of
Brammer Industrial Services. He is a chartered
accountant and spent 12 years with KPMG in
Scotland, USA and Belgium. He held a variety
of financial management positions with
Wilkinson Match ple befare joining Raychem
Corporation where he held various general
management posts in the UK, continental
Europe and USA.

Robert Hough ® + + DL {(age 36)

Senior independent non-executive director
Appointed to the boagd in 1993 and became
deputy chairman and senior independent
non-executive director in 1998, He is also
chairman of the audit committee. He has a
law degree from Bristol University and was

a parener for nearly 15 years in a commercial
firm of solicitors in Manchester. Since 1989
he has been executive deputy chairman of the
property and transport group, Peel Holdings
p.Lc. and is also nen-executive deputy chairman
of QA plc and non-executive chairman of
Opal Telecom ple.

Kevin Mellor * ¢ + (age 35}

Independent non-executive director

Appointed to the board in 1997. He is chairman
of the remuneration committee. He has held

a wide range of executive positions with Exxon
Corporation, BET plc, Tibbett & Britten plc
and Transport Development Group ple.
Currently he is president, Europe, Middle

East & Africa with BAX Global.

Mel Porter {age 44} Director

Appointed to the board in 2000, He has a
degree in clectronics and a MBA from Cranfield
Universtzy. Joined Brammer in 1999 as chief
executive of Livingston. Prior to joining Brammer
he was responsible for strategic development
with Exel PLC (formerly Ocean Group) and
was managing director of the international
Mail and Express Logistics division. His other
appointments included executive director with
Dial Group, the car rental, leasing and fleet
management division of Barclays Bank plc and
exccutive director of the business to business
rental division of Thorn EMI PLC.

Elizabeth Blease (agc 35) Company secretary
Appointed group sccretary in February 2000.
Qualificd as a solicitor in 1992 and joined
Brammer in 1997,




Livingston. Outsourced management of
technology tools, including computing and
test and measurement equipment via rental
and related logistics, calibration management
and other management services, to global
custonters in a wide variety of industries.

Belgium
Livingston NV
Raymond Groebbe +32 15 286 286

Czech Republic
Livingston Electronic Services s.r.o.
Daniel Dusek +42 02 717 24 511

France

Climats SA (72.5% owned)
Sapratin SA (72.5% owned}
Herve Dinant +33 5 56 20 2525

Livingston SA
Pierre Bagot +33 1 45 12 63565

Somelec SA
Alain Fux +33 1 56 70 3622

TIS-Livingston SA
Alain Fux +33 1 45 12 6565

Germany

Livingston Elecrronic Services GmbH
Livingston Calibration GmbH
Volker Tegeder +49 6151 93440

Holland
Livingston B.V.
Raymond Groebbé +31 318 524607

Livingston Calibration BV
Steve Brown +31 793 436000

Italy

Livingston Electronic Services sel
Sharon McNally +39 02254 0831

Spain
Livingston Electronic Equipment Services, SA
Volker Tegeder +34 91 372 60 53

United Kingdom

Livingston UK Limited

Mel Porter +44 {0)208 943 5151
(Ireland) +35 31 842 5000

Brammer Industrial Services. Leading

value added supplier of power transmission
compenents and related inventory management,
procurement and logistics services in Europe.

Austria
AKN GmbH {49% owned)
Nico Schén +43 7252 82610

Belgium
AKN NV/SA (49% owned)
Nico Schon +32 3546 7878

Anderlecht Bearing Services SA (87.2% owned)
Pierre Mylemans +32 2558 1530

Czech Republic
Thi CZ s.r.0. (51% owned)
Wolfgang Bommes +42 (2 717 22 187

France
Roulement Service SA

Jean-Marie Fink +33 3 88 40 40 88

Germany
THF GmbH & Co. KG {(51% owned)
Wolfgang Bommes +49 721 7906 302

Carl Fischer GmbH & Co. KG (51% owned)
Wolfgang Bommes +49 {0) 40 7342 000

Holland

KNS Aandrijfrechniek BV (49% owned)
Nice Schon +31 23 5 164164

Carim b.V.
Ko Knol +31 20 682 8215

Hungary
THF HU Kft. {51% owaed)
Wolfgang Bommes +36 2035 37666

Portugal

Sociedade de Rolamentos, SDR SA (25% owned)
Alfredo Lima +351 22 619 8320

Spain
Rodamientos USA, SA
José Ignacio Qlave +34 94 457 94 00

Rodamientos Rabinad, SA
José Ignacio Clave + 34 93 337 91 92

United Kingdom
BSL Limited
Lawrence Jackson +44 (0)161 953 8600

All companies listed above are incorporated in the country under which they listed and are wholly owned
by the group except where indicated. All companies are owned through intermediate holding companies,
principally Livingston Services PLC and Brammer Industrial Services Limited, Further subsidiaries have
not been shown because they are dormant or not material, Their particulars will be included in the next

annual return,

KNS Aandrijfrechniek BV, AKN GmbH, AKN NV/SA and Sociedade de Rolamentos SDR SA are accounted
for as associates by the group. All other companies are accounted for as wholly owned subsidiaries as the

group has effective ownership of those companies.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 15
AND ASSOCIATES




16 BRAMMER AND ITS ADVISERS

Registered office
Brammer plc

Station House
Stamford New Road
Altrincham

Cheshire WA14 1EP

Registered in England and Wales
Number 1629235

Bankers

HSBC Bank ple

100 King Street
Manchester M60 2HD

National Westminster Bank PLC
City of London Office

1 Princes Street-

London EC2R 8PB

Société Générale SA
Paris Etoile Entreprises
33 Avenue de Wagram
BP 963

75829 Paris Cedex 17
France

Dresdner Bank AG
Postiach 110453
64219 Darmstadr
Germany

Registrars

Lloyds TSB Registrars
The Causeway
Worthing

West Sussex BN99 6DA

Auditors
PricewatcrhouseCoopers
101 Barbirolli Square
Lower Mosley Street
Manchester M2 3IPW

Financial advisers

Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein Limited
PO Box 560

20 Fenchurch Street

Londen EC3P 3BB

Solicitors

Slaughter and May
35 Basinghall Street
London EC2V 5DB

Stockbrokers

Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein Limited
PO Box 560

20 Fenchurch Street

London EC3P 3DB
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BRAMMER DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors prasent their annual report for the yvear ended 31 December 2001,

Principal activities of the group
Brammer plc is a holding company. s principal operating subsidiaries and associates, all of which are wholly owned
except where stated, are listed earlier in this document together with details of their activities and locations,

The principal activity of the group is the provision of high value added, European wide, business to business services,
namely

@ Outsourced management of technology tools, including computing and test and measuring equipment via rental
and related logistics, calibration management and other management services, to global customers in a wide variety
of industries.

® Leading value added supglier of power transmission components and related inventory management, procurement
and logistics services in Europe.

Financial results and dividend

The chairman’s statement and the chief executive’s, operaling and financial reviews report on the group’s activities
during the year and likely future developments.

The directors recommend a final dividend of 12.6p per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2001 (2000
12.8p), which, together with the interim dividend of 6.7p (2000 £.5p) per ordinary share, brings the total dividend paid
and proposed to 19.3p 2000 19.1p) for the year. Subiject to the approval of shareholders at the annual general meeting,
the final dividend will be paid on 3 July 2002 to all shareholders on the register at close of business on 31 May 2002.
Share capital

Details of the movements in the number of shares in issue during the year are given in note 14 to the accounts.
Directors

Details of the directors of the company are shown earlier in this document. Al directors served throughout the year
except David Dunn who was appointed on 2 November 2001. Additionally Robert Ffoulkes-Jones served as a director

until his retiremeant on 2 November 2001. All directors are subject to retirement by rotation under the company’s articles
of association.

The directors retiring by rotation are lan Fraser, David Hollywood and Robert Hough and, being eligitie, they sach offer
themselves for re-election. lan Fraser and David Hollywood's service contracts provide for two years' notice to be given
by the compary in the event of their employment being terminated. Robert Hough serves the company in a non-executive

capacity. He was appointed in 1993 for a fixed three year term which was renewed for further terms of three years
each in 1996 and 1999,

David Dunn retires as he was appointed since the last annual general meeting. He was appointed non-sxacutive chairman

on 2 November 2001. Subject to his appointment by shareholders at the annual gensral meeting in 2002 the appeintment
will be for a period of three years from the date of the mesting.

Further details of the directors’ service contracts are set out in the remuneraticn report.
Directors’ interests

The beneficial interests of the directors and their immediate families in the shares of the company are set out in the
remuneraticn report.

Substantial shareholdings

As at 19 February 2002, the company had notification that the following were interested in 3% or more ¢f the company's
issued share capital.

Fidelity International Limited/FMR Corp 14.01% Prudential plc {and certain of its subsidiaries} 5.84%
Newton Management Limited 11.03% Roval & SunAlliance lnsurance Group ple 4.07%
AXA Investment Managers UK Limited 10.98% Phillips & Drew Life Limited 3.47%
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Charitable and political donations in the United Kingdom
Charitable donations made during the year amounted to £1,663. No political donations were made.

Payment to suppliers

The group’s policy Is normally to pay suppliers according to agreed terms of business. These terms are agreed with
suppliers upon entering into contracts and the group’s policy is 1o adhere to the payment terms providing the supplier
meets its obligations. The company is a holding company and had ne trade supgliers at the end of the financial year.
The company does not follow any standard code in respect of payments to suppliers. Creditor days for the company’s

UK subsidiary companies are shown in their financial accounts. Because of the varied countries in which the group
tradles an overall creditor days' figure would not be meaningful.

Employees

The group values the commitment of its employees and recognises the importance of good working relaticnships and
communication.

The group is commitied to open and regular communications with employees about business developments and
issues of general interest to them, both on a farmal and informal basis, The performance of the group is communicated
regularly to all staff. Copies of the annual report together with details of preliminary and interim announcements of the

group’s resuits are available to them. Translations of the executive statements are available for employees in France,
Germany and Spain.

In 2000 a formal human resources policy framework was adoptad throughout the group. The framework includes a
process of appraisal and development to ensure companies get the best from their people; emphasis has been placed
on career pathways with individual training and development programmes. Motivational events have been organised
for each division during the year. The group operates internationally and therefore its employment policies are varied
1o meset local conditions and reguirements. These are established on the basis of the best practics for each individusl
country. New and existing staff at all lavels are trained to become familiar with products, markets, systems, service
standards and management skills in order better to satisfy customer needs and to enhance their own carger

prospects. (n 1998 the Brammer European Council was established with each company in the group selecting a
representative. The council meets once in gach year.

Both employment pclicy and practice in the group are based on non-discrimination and equal opportunities.

In the UK the company encourages employees’ participation in the group’s progress through a savings related share
awnership scheme. Full-time staff, other than those in France, who have completed one year's qualifying service, have

been invited periodically to participate in the company's savings related share option scheme. The tax regime in France
has not been beneficial for staff in that courtry to join the scheme.

Environmental and health and safety policies

The company acknowledges that the health, safety and welfare at work of all of the group’s employees is a major
responsibility of management. The company has & comprehensive policy embracing health and safety matters with the
chijective of ensuring that procedures conform to current best practice. Each subsidiary has adopted its own procedures
to meet the group’s objectives. Health and safety reports are made to group and division boards.

The company regards compliance with relevant environmental iaws as an important part of its respensible approach
to the environment and is committed to good anvironmental management practices throughout its operations. The
company has adopted a group environmental policy. It is the responsibility of each subsidiary to comply with this policy
by implementing initiatives to meet their own exposures and responsibilities, Implemeantation of the policy will be
monitored by the company.

Auditors

A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopars as auditor to the company and 1o authorise the directors to determing
their remuneration wil be proposed at the annual general meeting.
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Annual general meeting

The annual general meeting of the company is to be held at 1:00pm on Tuesday, 30 April 2002 at The Goring Hotel,
Beeston Place, London SW1W OJW,

The notice of meeting appears at the end of this document. Four resolutions will be proposed as items of special

business at the mesting and explanations of these resolutions are given in the enclosed circular. The special business
includes a resclution to adopt a Performance Share Plan.

ZA G

By order of the board
Elizabeth Blease
Secretary

19 February 2002




BRAMMER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The board is accountable to the company’s shareholders for good corporate governance. its policy is to manage the
affairs of the company in accordance with the principles of Good Governance and the Code of Best Practice set out
in section 1 of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance appended to the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority

{"the Combined Ccde™). The board confirms that the company has complied with the Combined Code in all respects
except as set out below.

1 Four of the executive directors’ service contracis provide for notice periods in excess of one year; the background
1o and reasons for this are given in the remuneration report.

2 Rohert Ffoulkes-Jones retired as a director of the company on 2 November 2001. To the date of his retirement, the
company did not comgly with the Combined Code in the following respects

{)) Under his letter of appointment Robert Ffoulkes-Jones’ appointment could be terminated on 12 months’ notice
by the company or Robert Floulkes-Jones, rather than being appointed for a specific term,

{ii) Robert Floulkes-Jones served on the remuneration committes although he was not considerad an independent
director in accordance with the Combined Code.

The following parts of this report describe the board’s approach to corporate governance and how the principles of
the Combined Code are applied.

Part A: Directors

All directors, five executive and four non-executive, are equally responsible for the groper stewardship of the company.
Al the non-executive directors are independent of the company’s executive management and free from any business or
other relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement. The deputy chairman,
Robert Hough, is the senior independent non-executive director.

The positions of chairman and chief executive are held by separate individuals and the board has clearly defined their

responsibilities. The chairman is primarily responsible for the effective working of the hoard while the chief executive
has responsibility for all operational matters,

The board meets on a regular basis. Al directors are supplied, in a timely manner, with all relevant documentation
and financial information to assist them in the discharge of their duties. This includes information on the company’s
operational and financial performance. The board regularly reviews the management and financial performance of the

company, as well as long term strategic planning and risk assessment. The board has a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved to it for decision.

The board has adopted an internal governance policy which assists it in operating effectively. This policy includes training
for new directors, the role of the company secretary and access to independent professional advice where appropriate.

Some specific responsibilities, which have been reserved to the board, have been delegated to committees of the
board including the audit, remuneration and nominations committees.

The nominations committee and the board seek to maintain an appropriate balance between the executive and
non-executive directors. The nominations committee is chaired by David Dunn and consists of all the non-executive
directors and the chief executive. It considsrs and makes recommendations to the board on its compasition and
balance. It is also responsible for recommending suitable candidates for appointment to the board.

The roles of the audit and remuneration committees are described below.

Part B: Directors’ remuneration

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in the remuneration repart. The report details the company’s compliance
with the Combined Code’s reguirements with regard to remuneration matters,
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Part C: Relations with shareholders

The boeard is accountable to shareholders for the company’s continued success. The company accordingly places
great emphasis on maintaining good communications with sharehciders. The chairman, chief executive and finance
director meet regularly with major sharcholders to discuss the group’s performance, strategic issues and shareholder

investment objectives. The annual and interim reports together with the Brammer web site are substantial means of
communication with ali shareholders during the year.

The notice of the annual general mesting is set out at the end of this document. The notice is dispatched (o shareholders,
together with explanatory notes or a circular on items of special business, at least 2C working days before the meeting,
The board welcomes questions from shareholders whio have an opportunity 1o raise issues either informally or formally
before or at the annual general meeting. The chairmen of the audit, remunarafion and nominations committeas will
normally be avallable at the meeting to answer those questions relating to the work of these committess.

The company counts all proxy votes. At the annual general meeting, the chairman will inform shareholders of the leval

of proxies lodged on each resolution. The votes for and against each resolution are given following the show of hands
for that resolution.

Part D: Accountability and audit

The respective responsibiliies of the directors and auditors in connection with the financial statements are explained
in the augitors’ report.

Internal control

The hoard is responsible for the company’s system of internal conitrol and for reviewing its effectiveness. The directors
have conducted a review of the effectiveness ¢f the groug's system of internal control during the year. There is an ongoing

process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the company; this has operated throughout
the year and into 2002; the board reviews the results of the process.

Operational structure, review and compliance

Over the tast two to three years the portfclio of businesses has changed significantly and the management and control
structure has continued 1o evolve in 2001 in response to this. As well as Brammer board meetings, there are regular
divisicnal meetings to review operating performance, plans, risks and controls.

in Livingston there are now regular divisional meetings of country managing directors and business meetings for the
three business streams, as well as regular mestings of the senior finance managers. Thase meetings provide a forum to
establish policies and identify best practice. Livingston is also in the process of implementing e-Result as the enterprise
resource planning (“ERP"} system throughout the rental business; this is starting to provide operational benefits, as wal!
as enabling corporate control by applying division-level controls cantrally across the entire rental business,

In Brammer Industrial Senvices there are regular divisional meetings of country managing directors. There is now a divigional
team with shared responsibility for finance, 1T, logistics, precurement and marketing; the divisional team is intended 1o
complement rather than replace or replicate the work of managers in the subsidiaries. The acguisition of THF at the
beginning of 2001 has made the role of this team all the more relevant. Teams of senior executives drawn from the
subsidiary and divisional managers are now focusing on key activities — logistics, procurement, marketing and finance.
Each Brammer Industrial Services business already hag a long-standing ERP system — currently the strategy is o
improve communications between those systems to improve our overall supply chain management.

Brammer has had a finance manual in place for many years; this was expanded in 2001 to become a corporate manual

with a wider range of contents, reflecting the evolution in corporate govarnance from financial internal controt to all
aspects of internal control,

In addition to the group finance director, Brammer now has senior financial managers appointed in both divisions and
the parent. Thase three managers are invited to attend audit commitiee meetings to present an updated assessment
of their respective areas of the business and the risks and ¢ontrols therein, along with PricewaterhouseCocpers
who became our externat auditors in 2001, We have considered whether the company shouid have an internal audit

department; while sorme subsidiaries have their own internal audit function, it is feft that internat audit at corporate level
is not yet appropriate.
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Brammer has had independent assessments of its existing internal controls carried out for several years. Following the
creation of two clear divisional structures, those divisions have also instituted internal monthly self-assessment
processes at subsidiary level, tailored to their respective operations; these assassments are submitted to Brammer and
thair respective divisional teams for revisw. Manthly financial results of each subsidiary are reviewed at divisional and
group level; the monthly review includes divisional meetings where performance and action plans are presented to the

Brammer chief executive, finance director and financial controller. This culminates in reporis that cover operational,
financial and control reviews being submitted to the beard.

The rate of change in market conditions, and ultimately the decline in our level of rental turnover in test and measurernent
and computer products, was not identified and alerted as soon as we had hoped would happen. Therefore, we have

made a senigr appointrnent at divisional leve! to provide the additional management resources necessary to improve
our systems in order to initiate earlier warnings of possible future problems.

Risk management

The subsidiaries are reguired 1o carry cut periodic risk assessments of their business and submit thern to the divisional
teams. Taking account of risks identified during these reviews and cther processes such as the divisioral meetings
described above, this is distilled into a divisional 'Turnkull risk assessment’ that is designed to summarise the key

operational risks to each division, how those risks are evolving and how they are being mitigated. A separate review is
carried out at Brarmmer that focuses on corporate risks.

Brammer's insurance continues to be managed and negotiated centrally with the assistance of an insurance broker.
This gives us full visibility of both our cleims history ard the insurance industry’'s perception of our overall risk via the
respective insurance premiums. Brammer examines the size and trend of these premiums and the extent to which we

can mitigate the risks and reduce the overall risk burden in the business by considering the appropriate level of
deductible and the potential benefit of self-insurance in some areas.

We mitigate the financial risk of balance shest volatility by hedging our exposure to the euro. We have also reviewed
our accounting policies in accordance with FR318 and we have moved from an actual rate to an average rate to
translate trading results, a secondary effect being to remove some volatiiity in reported earnings; we have a clearly

defined corporate policy and methodology for evaluating the prospective raturns of every investment in Livingston
rental equipment.
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BRAMMER REMUNERATION REPORT

The remungration committes {the commities) comprises all the non-executive directors of the cormpany, Chris Corway,
David Dunn, Robert Hough and Kevin Mellor, who is the chairman of the committee. Members of the committes have

no personal interest in the company other than as shareholders and the fees paid to them as non-executive directors,
They are not involved in the day to day running of the company.

lan Fraser, as chief executive of the company, although not a member of the committes, on occasions and for matters
not related to himself, may be invited to attend meetings. He is consulted by the committee on proposals relating to
the remuneration of the other executive directors and appropriate senior executives.

Role of the committee

The committee, on behalf of the board, determines and approves remuneration policy for the group and alt elements
of the remuneration arrangements for executive directors.

On the board's behalf, the commitiee approves the general recruitment terms, remuneration bensfits, ernployment
conditions and severance terms for senior executives and determines the specific recruitment terms, remuneration
benefits, employment conditions, pension rights, compensation payments and severance terms for the exacutive

directors. it also approves the rules and associated guidelines for the granting of executive share options and savings
related share opticns.

In its deliberations, the committee gives full consideration to the principles of good governance and the code of best
practice within the Combined Code on Corporate Governance.

General policy

The committee and the board recognise that in order to attract, retain and motivate talented senior executives it is
necessary o operate a comgetitive pay and benefits structure. The committes aims to reward executives fairly and

responsibly for their contribution to the company’s performance but avoids paying more than necessary to achieve this
ohjective.

The commiittee, in determining the performance element of remuneration, seeks to ensure that it forms a significant
proportion of the total remuneration package of executive directors. It is designed to align directors’ interests with
those of shareholders and to give these executives keen incentives to perform at the highest levels. In addition to being
a contraciual requirement, all directors are encouraged 1o e shareholders of the company.

The comimittes is sensitive to the pay and employment conditions elsewhers in the group, espedially when determining
annual salary increases.

in setting all elements of remuneration, the committee is guided koth by published surveys and by specific studies

commissicned from tirme to time by the committes from independert specialist consultants. | takes professional
advice from within and outside the company.

Remuneration of executive directors
The componenis of the remuneration packages for the execulive directors are as follows
Basic salary

The committee and the board seek to pay salaries which take account of individual performance and are similar to
those paid in comparable companies. The committee uses comparisons with caution to avoid increasing remuneration
levels without a corresponding improvement in performance. Basic salary is reviewed at 31 December each year.

Annual bonus

The committee sets exacting performance related bonus targets related to profit, earnings per share and, where
appropriate, other indices. These are baged on forecasts of group performance in the context of the aconomic conditions
expacted for the year ahead. Historically, targets have been set on a three-year basis and around ¢ne third of potential
bonus was related to these longer term schemes, If targets were met, benus was approximately 33% of salary and
this could have been increased up to a maximum 50% of salary if the targets were exceedsd by a substantial margin,

For 2002 the remuneration committee have approved a new performance related bonus scheme for executive directors.
The scheme is ased on achieving stretching earnings per share and cash production targets. Targets are based on
group performance for the year. A small element of the bonus will be based on the achievement of challenging personal

objectives. The maximum bonus executives can be awarded will be 80% of basic salary. Maximum bonus will only be
paid in years of exceptional performance.

Performance related bonuses are not pensionable.
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Share options

The company currently operates executive share option schemes which were approved by shareholders in 1995 and
1997, The 1997 scheme has been approved by the Inland Revenue. Options issued under these schemes may be
exercised between three and ten years from the date granted provided that any performance criteria set from time to

iime by the cormmittee are safisfied. Options may not be granted at an oplion price less than the market value at the
date of grant.

The UK executive directors may participate in the savings related share option schemes which were approved by
shareholders in 1989 and 1999. The company alsc operates savings related share option schemes under which it has
offered options, from time to time, 1o employees in the UK, Germany, Holland, reland and Spain who have completed 12
months' service. The amount that can be saved is subject to UK Inland Revenue limits. Savings related options may

be exercised five years after the date of grant. In France the personal tax rules have made such schemes unattractive
to employees.

Tha non-executive directars are not eligible to be granted options under either the executive share option schemes ar
the savings related share option schemes.

Options on shares held by directors at 31 December 2001 were as follows

Market price (Gains on

31 A Exercise  on date of options Date from

Decemnber Granted/ December price exercise exercised which
2000  (exercised) 2001 pence pence ¢ exercisable Expiry date

John Gumming

Discretionary 20,000 - 20,000 310.0 April 1987 April 2004
25,000 - 25,000 355.0 April 1998 April 2005
20,000 - 20,000" 513.0 Mar 1999 Mar 2006
7,000 - 7,0001 576.0 Sept 2000 Sept 2007
6,500 - 6,500° 380.0 Sept 2001 Sept 2008
28,645 - 28,6457 380.0 Sept 2003 Sept 2010
- 30,000 30,0002 3365 Sept 2004 Sept 2011
Savings related 4,261 4,261 396.0 Dec 2004  June 2005

111,406 30,000 141,406

Jean-Marie Fink

Discretionary 20,000 - 20,000 310.0 April 1997 April 2004
25,000 - 25000 355.0 April 1998 April 2005
20,000 - 20,0007  513.0 Mar 1999 Mar 2006
15,000 - 15,0007 576.0 Sept 2000 Sept 2007
15,000 - 15,0007 3800 Sept 2001 Sept 2008
10,000 10,0007 5150 Sept 2002  Sept 2008
- 7,500 7,5002 3385 Sept 2004  Sept 2011
105,000 7,500 112,500

lan Fraser
Discretionary 100,000 - 100,0007  335.0 Oct 2001 Oct 2008
24,000 - 24,0007 515.0 ) Sept 2002  Sept 2008
65,000 - §5000' 330.0 Sept 2003 Sept 2010
- BB,469 66,4692 3385 Sept 2004 Sept 2011
Savings related - 6,515 6,515 254.0 Dec 2006 May 2007

189,000 72,984 261,984
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Market price Gains on

31 3t Exercise  on date of options Date from
December Granted/  December price exercise exercised which
2000 (exercised) 2001 pence pence £ exercisable Expiry date
David Hollywoed
Discretionary 20,000  ({20,000) - 225.0 485 52,000 April 1994 April 2001
20,000 (20,000 - 225.0 485 52,000 April 1994 April 2001
20,000  {20,000) - 225.0 485 52,000 April 1995 April 2002
10,000 {10,000 - 213.0 485 27,200 Sept 1995 Sept 2002
20,000 {20,000) - 310.0 485 35,000 April 1997 April 2004
25,000 - 25,000 385.0 April 1998 April 2005
20,000 - 20,0001 513.0 Mar 1999 Mar 2006
15,000 - 15,0001 576.0 Sept 2000 Sept 2007
10,000 - 10,0007  380.0 Sept 2001 Sept 2008
10,000 - 10,0001 515.0 Sept 2002 Sept 2009
8,613 - 8,61317 3800 Sept 2003 Sept 2010
- 44313 44,3132 3385 Sept 2004 Sept 2011
Savings related 4,261 (4,261) - 396.0 Dec 2004 May 2005
- 6,515 6,515 254.0 Dec 2006 May 2007
182,874 (43,433} 139,441 218,200
Met Porter
Discretionary 53,000 - 53,0001 494.0 Qct 2002 Oct 2009
45,000 - 45,000 390.0 Sept 2004 Sept 2010
- 42,836 42,8362 3385 Sept 2004 Sept 2011
- 15,164 15,1643 338.5 Sept 2004 Sept 2011
Savings related - 6,515 6,515 254 .0 Dec 2006 May 2007
98,000 64,515 162,515
Notes

T Performance related conditions apply to these options, These criteria provide that optiors can normally only be
exercised if, in any period of three consecutive financial years commencing no earlier than the beginning of the financial
year in which the option is granted, the earnings per share of the company have increased by a percentage being
no less than the percentags increase in the government’s retall price index during the same period.

2 These options can only be exercised if the performance target is met. The target is based on the growth in normalised
consolidated fully diluted sarnings per share, before goodwil, of the company. Growth will be tested after three
years. The options will be exercisable if the growth has exceeded the retail price index by at least 99%. I the condition
is not met, it can be ratested in tha fourth or fitth financial year when growth must be at least 129% or 15% respectively,

3 These options are subject to a similar performance target to note 2 above, save that the growth has to exceed the
growth in the retail price index by at least 5% per annum,

4 The middle market price of an ordinary share at the close of business on 19 February 2002 was 204p. The range
of prices during the year was 51 7.5p to 255p and at 31 Decamber 2001 the price was 289p.

Gains on options exercised have been caleulated using the difference betwsaen the share option price and the market

price on the daie of the exercise. Where shares have been retained by the individual, rather than sold, the gain shown
is the notional gain at the dats of exercise.
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Pension
Full infermaticn about directers’ pension arrangements and entitlements is given below.
Other benefits

Other benefits afforded to the executive directors include private healthcare benefits, permanent health insurance (to
secure income in the event of il health or disability), life assurance and company car or car allowance.

Directors’ interests

The keneficial interests of the directors and their immediate families in the shares of the company according 1o the register
of directors’ interests required to be kept pursuant to section 325 of the Gompanies Act 1985, are set out below

Qrdinary shares of 20p

31 December 2001 31 December 2000

Shares Shares

Chris Conway 7,202 7,202
Jehn Cumming 104,287 104,285
David Dunn 2,500 -
Jean-Marie Fink 3,664 3,664
lan Fraser 30,295 30,110
David Hollywood 67,289 14,429
Robert Hough 9,000 6,345
Kevin Mellor 1,086 1,086
Mel Porter 15,933 15,233

" at date of appointment

There were no changes in the above-mentioned interests between 1 January 2002 and 19 February 2002.

No director was materially interested in any contract of significance with the company during the year, save that Jean-Marie
Fink had an interast in four properties which are leased to Roulerment Service S.A. The tarms of the leases were agreed
prior to Jean-Marie Fink becoming a member of the board and all of them are considered by the directors to be on

acceptable terms and at fair market rents. The total annual rental cost of these properties during the year was
£279,388.

Remuneration of non-executive directors

The chairman and the other non-executive directors are paid fees for their services. These directors are paid a standard
fee of £17,500 with further fees being payable for additional responsibilities such as being a member or chairman of a
committee. These fees are related to the time spent on the company’s business and are set at levels similar to those
of comparable companies. The non-executive directors, including the chairman, do not participate in bonus, option or
pension schemes and they do not receive any benefits in kind.

The remuneration of the non-executive directors, otheér than the chairman, is approved by the board on the recommendation

of the chainman and the chief executive. The remuneration of the chairman is approved by the board on the recommendation
of the other non-executive directors and the chief executive.

Service contracts

Each of the executive directors has a service contract with the company. in the cases of John Cumming, fan Fraser,
David Hollywood and Mel Porter, the notice entitlement is two years. In the case of Jean-Marie Fink the contract is
renewable for one year periods from 6 August each vear.

When considering these contracts, the committee has due regard te the provisicns of the Combined Code. The
committee does consider it desirable to reduce notice periods to one year. The committee is currently reviewing the
structure of the remuneration package offered to exscutive directors, This review includes a commitment to comply

with the Cornbined Code in respect of notice periods over a period of time. There will be a one year notice period in
the service contracts of executive directors appoirted in the future.
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The company’s practice is to appoint non-executive directors under letters of engagement rather than under service
contracts. These letters of engagement sat out terms of appointment, usually three years, and it is anticipated that the
period will be extended for a second term of three years with the agreesment of the board and the non-executive director,
although re-appointment is not automatic. In certain circumstances non-executive directors may be inviied to serve for
further terms if their continued appointment is considered to be in the interests of the company.

David Dunn was appointed on 2 November 2001, Subject to his appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
his appointment will be for a period of three years from the date of the meeting. Robert Hough's initial term of appointment,
which expired in September 1998, was renewed for a further term of three years and then for a third term of
years from September 1999. Kevin Mellor's initial term of appointment expirad in February 2000 and was extended for

a further tarm of three years. Chris Conway was appointed in October 1997 again for an initial term of three years. His
appcintment was extended for a further term of three years in November 2000,

three

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments comprise salaries, fees, performance related bonuses and taxable

benefits. The aggragate
emciuments of the directors in the year ended 31 December 2001 were as follows

Fees/salary Bonus Benefits 2001 total 2000 total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chris Conway 24 - - 24 20
John Curnming 140 - 13 153 180
David Dunn? {chairman) 14 - - 14 -
Robert Ffoulkes-Jonas?2 99 - - 99 80
Jean-Marie Fink3 113 P4l 5 139 165
lan Fraser4 225 - 15 240 286
David Hollywood 150 5 15 170 191
Rebert Hough 27 - - 27 23
Kevin Mellor 27 - - 27 23
Mel Porter 145 - 15 160 213
964 26 63 1,053 1,181

Notes

1 David Dunn was appainted to the board on 2 November 2001,
2 Robert Foulkes-Jones retired from the board on 2 Novernber 2001,
3 Jean-Marie Fink is resident in France and his emaluments were paid largely in French Francs, The figures stated above

reflect the sterling equivalent of amounts paid converted at the 2001 average exchange rate of FF10.570 = £1.
4 The highest paid director in the year ended 31 December 2001 was lan Fraser.

Directors’ pension entitlements

The UK based executive directors, whose details are given below, participate in defined benafits nen-centributory pension
schemes governed by an independent trust. John Cumming, David Hollywood and Mel Porter accrue benefit at the
rate of 1/30 of final pensionable salary for sach year of service Up to retirement age at 62. lan Fraser accrues benefit
at the rate of 1/60 of pensionakle salary for each year of service. Pension entitiement is calculated by reference to basic
salary only (sutject to the earnings cap for pension purposes) and naither annual bonuses nor benefits in kind ars

pensionable. The dependants of UK executive directors are eligible for dependants’ pensions and payments of a lump
sum in the event of death in service.
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The following directors are members of this scheme and have accrued defined benefits during 2001

Increase in accrued Transfer value of Accumulated total accrued
pension aver the year increase over the year annual pension
£ £
John Cumming 6,400 88,000 58,900
lan Fraser 1,600 13,000 5.000
David Hollywood 3,300 43,000 34,400
Mel Porter 3,100 26,000 7,000
Notes
1

The accumulated total accrued annual pension is the amount which will be paid annually on retirement at age 62
based on service to 31 December 2001,

The increase in accrued pension over the year excludes any increase for inflation.

The transfer value eguivalent of the increase has been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with
Actuarial Guidance Note GN11, less directors’ contributions.

Neither the contributions nor the resulting benefits from additional voluntary contributions paid are reflectedin this table.
With the exception of Robert Floulkes-Jones who was a deferred pensioner, the non-executive directors do not
receive any pension benefits nor participate in any of the group’s pension schemes.

N

'S

lan Fraser, David Hollywood and Mel Porter's pensions from the scheme are affected by the Iniand Revenue earnings

cap on approved pension beanefits. The company has established for them a funded unapproved top-up arrangement.
The contributicns in 2001 were

Cantributions Contributions

2001 2000

£ e

lan Fraser 37,035 42,445
David Holywood 18,150 16,240
Mel Porter 15,950 14,940

Jean-Marie Fink, who is resident in France, contributes to the mandatory French state scheme. Company contributions
on his behalf in 2001 were FF 283,804 (£26,850). In 2000 the contributions were FF 279,000 {(£26,734).
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BRAMMER DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Company law regquires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company and the group and of the prafit orloss of the group for thal period. The directors

are required to prepare financial statements on the going concemn basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors confirm that suitable accounting policies have been used and applied consistently. They alse confirm
that reasonakle and prudent judgements and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2001 and that applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and the group and enable them 1o ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors intend to publish these accounts on the group’s web site www.brammer.plc.uk. The maintenance and
integrity of this web site is the responsibility of the directors. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statermnents may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.




BRAMMER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT to the members of Brammer plc

We have audited the firancial statements which comprise the censolidated profit and loss account, the consclidated
balance sheet, the company balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the consclidated statement of total
recognised gains and losses, the statement of accounting policies and the notes to the financial staterments.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibifities for preparing the annuat report and the financial statements in accordance with applicatle
United Kingdom law ang accounting standards are set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory reguirements,

United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board and the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authority.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the directors’ report is not consistert
with the financial staternents, if the company has not kept proper acceunting records, if we have not received all the

information and explanations we require for our audit or if information specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding
directors’ remuneration and transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the annual report and consider the implications for our report if we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Tha other information
comprises only the chairman's statement, the chief executive's review, the operating reviews, the financial review, the
directors’ report, the corporate governance statement and the remuneration report.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the company's compliance with the seven provisions
of the Gombined Code speciiied for our review by the Listing Rules, and we report it it does not. We are not reguired
to consider whether the board's staiements on internal control cover all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s or group’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
inciudes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.,
it alsc includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements mads by the directors in the preparation

of the financial statements and of whether the accounting pclicies are appropriate to the company's cirgurmnstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and perfermed our audit so as to oblain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinicn we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the group as

at 31 December 2001 and of the loss and cash flows of the group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepaOd in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester

19 February 2002
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BRAMMER CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LDSS ACCDUNT for the year ended 31 December 2001

2001

2001

2001 2001 2001

2000
Total before
exceptional  Exceptional Restated
Existing Acquired items iterns Total presentation
Notes £'000 £'000 €000 £000 £'000 2000
Turnover 1 307,438 64,848 372,284 - 372,284 287,326
Cost of sales 3 194,307y (43,083} (237,390) (22,728) (260,118) (176,464)
Gross profit 113,129 21,765 134,834  {22,726) 112,168 110,862
Selling and logistics expenses (56,266) (16,886) (73,152) - {73,152) (52,495)
Administrative expenses
Before amortisation of goodwill {35,943 {2,003) {37.246) ~  {37,946) {31,934)
Amortisation of goodwill {818) {1,5617) {2,335) - {2,335) (470)
Total administrative expenses (36,761) (3,520) {40,281) ~ (40,281} (32,404)
Operating {loss)/profit 20,102 1,359 21,461 {22,726 (1,265) 25962
Loss on termination of operations 3 - - - {1,000) (1,000) -
Share of associates’ operating profit 606 - 606 - 606 467
Amortisation of goodwill in asscciates 61) - {61 - (e1) {62)
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities
before interest 1 20,847 1,359 22,008  (23,726) (1,720) 28,367
Net interest 2 (5,097) (2,468}
Profit on ordinary activities before tax,
goodwill and exceptional items 19,305 24,431
Goodwill (2,396) (532)
Exceptional items (23,726) -
(Loss)/profit on ordinary aclivities before tax 1 (6,817) 23,892
Tax 5 {19} (7.219)
iLoss)/profit on ordinary activities after tax (6,836) 16,880
Dividends 6 (9,253) (©,123)
Retained {loss)/profit for the financial year 14 (16,089} 7,557
Earnings per share
Basic before goodwill amortisation
and exceptional items 7 28.1p 36.1p
Basic 7 (14.3}p 35.0p
Diluted 7 (13.2p 34.9p
Dividend per share & 19.3p 19.1p

The above resuits for the current and previous years relate entirely to continuing operations.

BRAMMER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES for the year ended 31 December 2001

(Loss)/profit for the financial year
Exchange differences on foreign currency net investments

Total recognised gains and losses for the year

200 2000
£'000 £°000
{6,836) 16.680
(208) {424)

(7,044) 16,256




BRAMMER CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET at 31 December 2001

2001 2000
MNotes £°000 2000
Fixed assets
Intangitle assets 8 44,924 15,978
Tangible assels 8 80,652 98,724
Investment in associates 1,979 1,813
127,555 116,515
Current assets
Stock 45,877 29,983
Debtors 10 76,896 71,597
Cash and deposits 10,576 32,879
133,349 134,459
Creditors — due within one year 1 (95,211) {103,965)
Net current assets 38,138 30,494
Total assets less current liabilities 165,693 147,009
Creditors — due after more than one year 12 (87,283) (66,068)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 13 - {1,866)
Net assets employed 78,410 79,275
Capital and reserves 14
Calted up share capital 9,573 9,542
Share premium account 3,552 3,081
Shares 1o be issued 14,977 -
Profit and loss account 50,308 66,652
Shareholders equity 78,410 72,275

The accounts were approved by the board on 1€ February 2002 and were signad on its behalf by

David Dunn John Cumming

Chairman / Flnance dira
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BRAMMER BALANCE SHEET at 31 December 2001

2001 2000
The company Notes £7000 £'000
Fixed assets
Investments 9 48,285 48,635
Current assets
Long term debtors 10 163,789 107,576
Debtors - due within one year 10 3,111 57
Cash and deposits 4,161 840

171,061 108,473
Creditors — due within one year 2B (66,654) (41,288)
Net current assets 104,407 67,185
Total assets less current liahifities 152,692 115,820
Creditors — due after more than one year 12 {81,042) (59,522}
Net assels employed 71,650 56,298
Capital and reserves 14
Called up share capital 9,573 9,642
Share premium account 3,852 3,081
Shares to be issued 14,977 -
Special capital reserve 12,077 12,077
Profit and loss account 31,471 31,5¢8
Shareholders’ equity 71,650 56,298

The accounts were approved by the board on 19 February 2002 and were signed on its behalf by

David Dunn John Cumming




BRAMMER CONSOLIDATED GASH FLOW STATEMENT for the vear ended 31 December 2001

2001 2000
Notes £'000 £'000
Net cash inflow from operating activities 15 70,222 65,682
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 411 971
Interest paid (4,982} (2,441}
{4,571} {1,470
Tax paid {10,985} 6,423)
Capital expenditure
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (84,674) {79,801)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 22,548 24,531
{62,126) {65,270)
Acquisitions and disposals
Purchase of subsidiaries and businesses (18,489) (7,256)
Net overdrafts acquired (8,441) {1,338)
(26,930} (8.594)
lnvestment in associate - 413
(26,930) {8,181
Deferred consideration paid {1,047) {831)
(27,977) {8,812)
Equity dividends paid {9,236) (8,872)
Net cash outflow before management of liquid resources and financing {44,673) {15,235}
Management of liquid resources
Deposits 14,075 (6,928)
Financing
Shares issued 455 269
New loans taken out 22,479 13,133
Capital element of finance leases (98) (103}
22,836 13,299
Decrease in cash 18 {7,762) (8,864;
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BRAMMER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FRS 18

In accordance with FRS 18 the board has decided to revise the accounting policies in respect of the translation of
results in foreign currency and the classification of profits on disposal of fixed assets.

The policy for the translation of results in foreign currency has been revised from a period end to an average rate basis
for the year ended 31 December 2001. The impact as at 31 December 2000 and at 31 Decamber 2001 is not material;
accordingly the prior year comparatives have not been restated.

Profits and losses on disposal of fixed assets, previously shown separately on the profit and toss account as an FRS
3 paragraph 20(c) item, are now reparted within operating profit. The prior year comparatives have been presented on
the same basis. There is no impact on the profit before tax.

Accounting convention
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards under the historic cost convention.
Consoclidation principles

The consolidated profit and loss account and balance sheet include the accounts of the company and its subsidiaries.
All acceunts are made up to 31 December each year,

The resuits of subsidiaries acquired or sold are included in the consclidated accounts from or 1o the date that effective
control passes. Where contractual arrangements exist in respect of partly owned subsidiaries that are considered to

make 100% ownership inevitable the mincrity elements are treated as deferred consideration together with the balance
of the purchase price.

A separate profit and loss account dealing with the results of the company has not been presented as permitted by
secticn 230(4) of the Companies Act 1985.

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill on consalidation is calculated as the difference betwean the fair value of purchase congideration of companias
and the fair value of the net assets acquired.

For subsidiary companies acquired prior 0 1 January 1998 such goodwill was, and remains, written off directly against
reserves in the year of acquisition.

In accordance with FRS 10, for companies acquired on or after 1 January 1998, such goodwill is capitalised as an
intangible asset and is written off in equal instalments over its useful economic life, regarded as being a period of 20 years.

Foreign exchange

Assets and liabiliies in foregign currencies are fransiated into sterling at the rates of exchangs ruling on the balance
sheet date; operating parformance is translated at average rates. The exchange movements arising from the hedging
of foreign currency investment and unrealised exchange differences on translation of net assets employed are dealt
with through reserves,

Turnover

Turnover represents the value of services rendered to third parties and goods sold, excluding the sale proceeds of
previously rented fixed assets but including sales of glectronic equipment purchased specifically for resale, net of sales
taxes. Contracted income from rental and other services is recognised on a straight Iine basis over the period of the

contract,
leased assets and hire purchase

Where reference is made in the report and the financial statements to finance leases, this includes hire purchase
agreaments. Fixed assets acguired under finance leases are included under fixed assets in the balance sheet. The liability

relating thereto is included in creditors. Interest is calculated on the capital sum outstanding and is charged against
profits in the year in which it accrues.

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged against profits in the year to which they relate.
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Fixed assels
Fixed assets are stated at cost net of trade and vclume discounts,
Depreciation

Depreciation is provided by equal annual instalments to write off the cost of fixed assets net of residual values, other
than freehold land, over their estimated useful lives. In general the lives of the assets have been estimated as follows

Freehold buildings
Leasehold properties
Plant and equipment

individually estimated subject to a maximum of 50 years
tha term of the lease subject to a maximum of 50 years

10 years
Computers and similar office equipment 3 -5 vyears
Motor cars 4 years
Commercial vehicles 3 years
Electronic equipment for rent 1-6years

In addition to straight line depraciation, provision is made for impairment in value of electronic equipment for rent, The
provision ensures that the carrying value is the lower of depreciated cost and recoverable value, recoverable value

belng the higher of net realisable value and value in use. The value in use is the net present value of the net anticipated
future rental income.

Valuation of unlisted investments

Investments are held at cost less impairment provisions, In the group associates are stated at cost less goodwill
amortisation plus the group'’s share of post acquisition retained profits.

Research and development

All expenditure on research and development is charged against profits in the year incurred except expenditure of a
capital nature which is capitalised and depreciated as noted above.

Stock

Stock represents stock held for distripution and is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value., Cost of stock
represents material and a proportion of procurement overheads.

Deferred consideration

The amounts quoted for deferred payments refating 1o acquisitions and shown as shares to be issued and deferred
consideration are the directors’ best estimates of the actual amount which will be payable. Where the deferred
consideraticn can be settled in shares at the option of the group the amount is included as “Shares to be issued”.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method in respect of the tax effect of all timing differences to the extent that
they are expected to crystallise.

Pensions

Contributicns to the group pension schemes are charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the cost of
pensions over the expectad working lves of the members of the schemes.
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BRAMMER NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 TURNOVER, PROFIT AND NEY ASSETS

The business analysis of turnover, prefit before tax and net assets emploved is as foliows

Brammer
Livingston Industrial Services Total
2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Turnover 131,634 113,380 240,650 173,946 372,284 287,326
Operating profit before goodwil
and exceptional items 11,092 13,533 12,704 12,899 23,796 26,432
Goodwill {682) (373) (1,714) (159) (2,396} {632
Associates - - 606 467 606 467
Profit before exceptionat items and interest 10,410 13,160 11,596 13,207 22,006 26,367
Exceptional items (22,726) - (1,000} - {23,726) -
(Loss)/profit before interest (12,316) 13,160 10,596 13,207 (1,720) 26,367
Interest {5,097) (2,468}
{Loss)/profit before tax (6,817) 23,899
Net operating assets excluding associates
and goodwill 61,399 67,906 55,939 46,093 117,338 113,999
Associates - - 1,979 1,813 1,979 1,813
Capitalised goodwill 12,549 13,370 32,375 2,608 44,924 15,978
Net operating assets 73,948 81,276 90,293 50,514 164,241 131,790
Net debt (82,321) (38,180)
Dividends (6,031} {6,014)
Net tax 2,521 8,311)
MNet assets employed 78,410 79,275
The gecgraphic analysis of turnover, profit before interest and net operating assets is as follows
United Kingdom Other Europe Total
2001 2000 2004 2000 2001 2000
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Turnover 135,121 137,433 237,163 149,883 372,284 287,326
Operating profit betore goodwill
and exceptional items 5,127 8,131 18,669 18,301 23,796 26,432
Goodwill - - (2,396) (532) (2,396} {632)
Associates - - 8086 487 6086 487
Profit before exceptional items and interest 5127 8,131 16,879 18,236 22,006 26,367
Exceptional items {8,407) - (15319 - [23,726) -
{Loss)/profit before interest {3,280) 8,131 1,860 18,236 (1,720) 25,367
Net operating assets excluding associates
and goadwill 38,533 47,329 78,805 66,670 117,338 113,999
Associates - 1,979 1,813 1,979 1,813
Capitalised goodwill - - 44,924 15,978 44,924 15,978
Net operating assets 38,533 47,329 125,708 84,461 164,241 131,720




BRAMMER NOTES TO THE ACCDUNTS

1 TURNOVER, PROFIT AND NET ASSETS continued

Included in the group net operating assets of £117,338,000 is an amount of £14,855,000 relating to acquisitions in

the year which ware all BIS companies in other Europe.

Turnover to third parties by destination is not materially different to turnover by origin.

Operating profit is stated after charging/{crediting)

Brammer

Livingston Industrial Services Total

2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000

£'000 2000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Depreciation and impairment 70,540 39,108 4,123 3,922 74,663 43,028

Finance leases (included above) 54 74

Profit on sale of fixed assets {1,357) {3,096) - - {1,357) (3.096)
Cperating leases

Plant & machinery 1,381 645

Other including property 4,574 4,843

Group audit fees and expenses 37 323

Non-audit fees paid tc auditors within the UK 166 284

The company

2001 2000
£7000 £'000
Audit fees and expenses (included above} 42 55
Details of employees’ emoluments and of pension scheme charges are given in note 2.
2 EMPLOYEES
The group
2001 2000
£1000 £°000
Aggregate emoluments of employess, including directors, were
Wages and salaries 64,858 43,585
Social security costs 12,712 10,157
Pension costs 3,166 3,153
80,736 52,895
The group
2001 2000
numbers nurnbers
The average number of employees was
Livingston 1,138 850
Brammer Industrial Services 1,908 1,320
3,043 2,170

Details of directors’ remuneration, including those of the highest paid director, are given in the remuneration report,




40

BRAMMER NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

3 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Livingston experienced a steap fall in rental income in the last quarter of 2001 and has downsized its continuing business
incurring a charge of £22,726,0C0 which realigns the carrying value of the rental invantory to the recoverable value
consistent with long standing accounting pelicies. There was an associated tax cradit of £5,583,000.

Brammer Industrial Services has decided that its spindles operation is no longer a core activity and the £1,000,000
charge represents redundancy and property costs that will be involved in the termination of this business. There was

an associated tax credit of £300,000.

4 NET INTEREST

The group
200t 2000
£'000 £°000
interest payable
Bank overdrafts and short term orrowings 893 251
Loans 4,346 3,201
Finance leases 65 -
Associates 170 -
5,474 3,452
Interest receivable
Bank and other short term deposits (377) {984)
5,097 2,468
5 TAX
The group
2001 2000
£'000 £'000
United Kingdom corperation tax at 30% (2000 30%)
Current tax on income for the period 1,007 4.287
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 280 (736)
1,287 3,531
Deferred tax (2,289) {1,052)
Total United Kingdom corporation tax {1,002) 2,479
Foreign tax
Current tax on income for the period 2,870 4,387
Adjustments In respect of prior periods - 1,306
2,870 5,693
Deferred tax {2,024) {1,291)
Share of associates’ tax 175 338
Total foreign corporation tax 1,021 4,740
Tax on {(loss)/profit on ordinary activities 19 7,219




BRAMMER NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

6 DIVIDENDS
The group
2001 2000
£000 £000
Interim paid B8.7p {2000 6.5p) per 20p share 3,222 3,109
Final proposed 12.8p (2000 12.6p) per 20p share 6,031 6,014
9,253 9,123
7 EARNINGS PER SHARE
2004
Earnings/ 2000
Shares (losses) Shares Earnings
Profit numbers per share Profit numbers share
27000 000 pence £'000 000 pence
Profit for the financial year before exceptional
itemns and amortisation of goodwili 13,403 17,212
Average number of shares in issue 47,785 28.1 47,885 36.1
Exceptional items (22,728) -
Loss on termination of operations (1,000) -
Taxation adjustment on exceptional tems 5,883 -
Amortisation of goodwill {2,335) {470
Amortisation of goodwill — associates (61) 62}
{Loss)/profit for the financial year (6,836) (143} 16,680 35.0
Cilutive equivalent of outstanding share options 500 176
Outstanding shares to be issusd 3,712 ~
Average number of shares in issue (diuted) 51,974 {13.2) 47,861 34.9

The earnings per share figure before exceptional items and goodwill amortisaticn is quoted to make the numbers more

useful to the reader.
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8 FIXED ASSETS — INTANGIBLE AND TANGIBLE ASSEYS

The group
Intangible assets Tangible assets
200 2000 2001 2000
Land and Rental
Goodwill Goodwill buildings  Equipment inventory Total Total
£2000 £'000 £'000 £7000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 31 December 2000 16,568 2,808 9,973 39,242 119733 168,948 124,070
Fereign currency movements - - (77} 518 (2,385) (2,980} 780
Additicns - - 229 6,106 71,818 78,153 87,185
Acquisitions 31,281 13,760 1,044 5,875 - 7,019 5813
Transfer from rertal inventory - - - 281 (281) - -
Assets realised - - 472} (5010) (55,083} (60,565) (48,890)
At 31 December 2001 47,849 16,568 10,697 46,076 133,802 190,675 168,948
Depreciation
Al 3% December 2000 590 120 4,100 24,739 41,385 70,224 49,430
Foreign currency movements - {28) (343) (819) (1,180) 304
Charge in year 2,335 470 479 6,217 67,967 74,663 43,028
Acquisitions - - 6528 4727 - 5,355 4008
Transfer from rental inventory - - 133 (133) - -
Assets realised - - {285) (4,816} (34,028 (39,129) (26,636)
AL 31 December 2001 2,925 590 4,994 30,657 74,372 109,923 70,224
Net book value
At 31 December 2000 15,978 2,688 5,873 14,503 78,348 98,724 74,640
Movermnent in year 28,946 13,290 (70) 916 (18918, (18,072} 24,084
At 31 December 2001 44,924 15,978 5,803 15,419 58,430 80,652 98,724
The net book value comprises
Goodwil 44,924 15,978
Freehold properties 1,789 1,789 1,623
Long leasehold properties 1,969 1,969 2,139
Short leasehold properties 2,045 2,045 2,111
Fixtures and fittings G,624 6,524 6,366
Office equipment 5,370 5,370 4,780
Motor vehicles 3,525 3,525 3,357
Rental inventory 59,430 59,430 78,348
44,924 15,978 5,803 15,419 59,430 80,652 98,724
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8 FIXED ASSETS — INTANGIBLE AND TANGIBLE ASSETS continued

The group
2001 2000
£'000 £'000
At 31 Decernber 2001
Assets held under finance leases {ncluded above)
Cost 1,756 1,873
Depreciation 1,197 1,487
559 388
Gross depreciable cost of freehold buildings 3,154 2,242
Future capital expenditure
Commitments for which contracts have been placed (all rental inventory) 1,844 2,689
Additional information on use of rental inventory
Rental income (included in turnover) 87,696 82,016
Straight line depreciation charge 45,848 35,589
Proceeds from the sale of instruments previously rented
{included in sale of tangible fixed assets in the cash flow statement) 22,167 21,178
Purchases of instrumenits for rent
{included in purchase of tangible fixad assets in the cash flow statement) 71,818 79,316
CumUiative impairment provision at 31 December 2001 24,277 2172
The impairment provision is calculated using a discount rate of 10%.
Operating lease commitments
At 31 December 2001 the commitment to minimum annual lease payments was as follows
The group The company
Property Other Property
2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
£'000 000 2000 21000 £'000 £'000
Leases which terminate
Within one year 817 1,173 3582 295 - -
Between one and five years 2,568 3,602 746 585 - -
After five years 2,970 4,278 2 - - 53
6,355 9,053 1,110 880 - 53
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9 FIXED ASSETS — INVESTMENTS (UNLISTED)

Tha group The company
Goodwil 2001 2000 2001 2000
Cost  amortisation Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Associates
At 31 December 2000 1,227 {95} 581 1,813 2,351 1,868 2,282
Foreign currency movements - - (34 (34) - - -
Loan repaid by associate in year - - - - (414} - 414
Goodwill amortisation - {61) - ((G3))] 62) - -
Share of associates’
retained earnings - - 261 261 62) - -
At 31 December 2001 1,227 (156) 908 1,979 1,813 1,868 1,868
Subsidiaries
At 31 December 2000 - - 46,767 26,408
Investment in new subsidiary in year - - - 359
Additional investment in subsidiary in year - - - 20,000
Transfer of investment in subsidiaries to sub holding company - - {350) -
AL 31 December 2001 - - 46,417 46,767
1,979 1,813 48,285 48,635

The group’s interest in associated undertakings represents its share of the net assets and goodwill of Rolarnentos SDR
SA, a company incorperated in Portugal, and KNS Aandrijfiechniek BV, a company incorporated in Holland.

The historic cost at 31 December 2001 of tha company’s unlisted securities was £52,266,000 (2000 £52,616,000).

The list of principal subsidiaries appears earlier in this document.

10 DEBTORS

The group The company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Amounts due after one year

Supsicharies - - 163,789 107,576

Amounts due within one year
Trade debtors 70,376 67,924 - -
Subsidiaries - - 3,110 23
Other debtors 1,305 649 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 2,014 1,977 1 34
Retirement bengfits scheme 680 1,047 - _
Defarred tax 2,521 - - -
76,896 71,597 3111 57
76,896 71,597 166,900 107,633
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11 CREDITORS - DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

The group The company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Unsecured bank loan repayments due within cne year 1,500 930 - -
Finance fease commitments due within one year 46 44 - -
Overdrafts 9,515 10,01 9,358 —
Trade creditors 47,177 51,683 - -
Supsidiaries - - 51,005 34,000
Current tax - 6,645 - 534
Social security and other taxes 7,741 4,120 - -
Other creditors 3,460 3,320 - -
Deferred consideration 2,839 342 - -
Accruals 16,902 20,966 260 740
Dividends 6,031 6,014 6,031 8,014
85,211 103,265 66,654 41,288
12 CREDITORS — DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
The group The company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£'000 £'000 £'000 £:000
Unsecured bank loans repayable
Between cne and two years 38 372 - -
Between two and five years 81,07 59,622 81,042 59,522
81,109 59,8584 81,042 5G,522
Finance lease commitments
Between one and two years 70 48 - -
Between twe and five years 554 105 - -
Over five years 103 47 - -
727 200 - -
Deferred consideration 5,447 59874 - -
87,283 £6,068 81,042 59,522
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13 PROVISIDNS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

The group The company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
Deferred tax
At 31 December 2000 1,666 4,080 - (59
Foreign currency movermnents 50 5 - -
Profit and loss account (credity/charge {4,313) {2,343} - 59
Acquisitions 76 {76) - -
At 31 December 2001 (2,521) 1,666 - -
Balance at 31 December 2001 reprasents
Accelerated capital ailowances 4,521) 449 - -
Other timing differences 2,000 1,217 - -
At 31 December 2001 (2,521) 1,666 - -

Within the group the deferred tax asset of £2,521,000 is shown as a debtor in note 10.

The company has no deferred tax. The group has made full provision for deferred tax liabilities and has potential
defarred tax assets not recognised exceeding £2,000,0C0 on operating losses in continental Europe.

14 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

At 31 December 2000

Retained loss for the financial year
Unreglised exchange movement on
Debt used for hedging purposes
Transiation of overseas subsidiaries’ net assets

To be issued in settlement of purchase of subsidiaries
Shares issued

Movernent in year

AL 31 December 2001

The group
Issued share Share Shares to Profit and

capitad premium beissued oSS acoount Tota
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
9,642 3,081 - 66,652 79,275
- - - (16,089 {16,089

-~ - - 2,642 2,642
- - - (2,850) (2,850}

- - 14,977 - 14,977

31 471 - (47) 455

31 471 14977 (16.344) (865)

9,573 3,562 14,977

50,308 78,410

The curmulative amount of goodwill arising on consclidation of subsidiary companies written off against the profit and
loss account reserve as at 31 December 2001 is £30,470,000 (2000 £30,470,000).
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14 CAPITAL AND RESERVES continued

The company

Issued share Share Shares to Special Profit and
capital prermium be issued capital loss account Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 31 December 2000 9,542 3,081 - 12,077 31,598 56,298
Retained 1oss for the financial year - - - - {127 12N
To be issued In setilemant of purchase
of subsidiaries - - 14,977 - — 14,977
Shares issued 31 471 - - - 502
Movement in year 31 471 14,977 - (127 15,352
At 31 December 2001 9,573 3,552 14,977 12,077

31,471

71,650

The special capital reserve is non-distributable.

Reconciliations of movements in shareholders’ equity for the vear ended 31 December 2001

{Loss)/profit for the financial year
Dividends

Shares issued

Share capital

Crdinary shares of 20p each
Authorised

Altotted and fully paid

At 31 December 2000
Executive share opticns
Savings related share options

The group The company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Shareholders’ equity at 31 December 2000 79,275 71,873 56,298 58,169
{6,838) 16,680 9,126 8,729
(9,253) {9,123 (9,253) 2,123
(16,089) 7,557 {127} (2,394)
To be issued in settlement of purchase of subsidiaries 14,977 - 14,977 -
Other recognised {osses)/gains for the year {208) (424) - 812)
455 269 502 335
Net movement in shareholders' equity for the year (865) 7,402 15,352 {2,871)
Shareholders™ equity at 31 December 2001 78,410 79,275 71,650 56,298
The group and company
2001 2000
Numbers Numbers
70,000,000 57,500,000
47,711,155 47,623,934
100,000 -
53,997 87,221
47,865,152 47,711,155

At 31 December 2001

In the period from 1 January 2002 to 19 February 2002, no shares were issued on the exercise of gptions undar the
company’s executive and savings related share option schemas.
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14 CAPITAL AND RESERVES continued

Share option schemes

Movements on share options during the year were as fallows

31 December

31 December  Date from which
Price per share 2000 Granmed Exercised Lapsed 2001 exercisabie Expiry tale
Executive
1985 scheme
225p 40,000 - {40,000) - - 8 Apr 1994 & Apr 2001
225p 20,000 - {20,000} - - 9 Apr 1995 9 Apr 2002
213p 10,000 - {10,000} - - 9 Sep 1995 9 Sep 2002
310p 131,500 - {30,000} - 101,500 8 Apr 1997 8 Apr 2004
355p 187,000 - - - 187,000 19 Apr 1898 19 Apr 2005
1995 scheme
513p 222,500 - - - 222500 29 Mar 1999 29 Mar 2006
533p 35,000 - - - 35,000 10 Apr 1999 10 Apr 2008
623p 20,000 - - 20,000 10 Apr 2000 10 Apr 2007
576p 207,500 - - (1,500) 206,000 9 Sep 2000 9 Sep 2007
380p 171,250 - - {2,000} 169,250 15 Sep 2001 15 Sep 2008
335p 21,500 - - 91,500 g Oct 2001 6 Oct 2008
515p 130,800 - - {2,000} 128,600 10 Sep 2002 10 Sep 2009
494p 47,000 - - - 47,000 6 Oct 2002 6 Oct 2009
390p 358,917 - (1,000} 358,917 12 Sep 2003 12 Sep 2010
510p - 14,430 - - 14,430 16 Mar 2004 16 Mar 2011
338.5p - 590,772 - - 590,772 6 Sep 2004 8 Sep 2011
1997 scheme
576p 88,500 - - - 88,500 9 Sep 2000 9 Sep 2007
380p 93,250 - - {1,000} 92,250 15 Sep 2001 15 Sep 2008
335p 8,500 - - - 8,500 6 Gct 2001 6 Oct 2008
515p 13,900 - - - 13,900 10 Sep 2002 10 Sep 2009
494p 6,000 - - 6,000 6 Oct 2002 6 Oct 2009
390p 60,855 - {1,000 59,855 12 Sep 2003 12 Zep 2010
510p - 15,570 - - 15,570 16 Mar 2004 16 Mar 2011
338.5p - 82,135 - - 82,135 6 Sep 2004 B Sep 2011
Total 1,944,772 702,907 {100,000} (8,500) 2,539,179
Savings related
1989 scheme
378p 64,640 - {41,154y  {23,486) - 1 Dec 2000 1 Jun 2001
461p 211,138 - {2,635) {689,021} 139,482 1 Nov 2002 1 May 2003
1995 international scheme
378p 24,667 - {10,019} (14,648) - 1 Dec 2000 1 Jun 2001
461p 49,500 - {4,340) 45,160 1 Nov 2002 1 May 2003
396p 14,785 - - (1,115) 13,670 1 Dec 2004 1 Jun 2005
1999 scherme
396p 299,877 - (189} (144,068) 155,622 1 Dec 2004 1 Jun 2005
254p - 851,856 - (11,465) 840,391 1 Dec 2006 1 Jun 2007
Total 664,607 851,856 {63,997} 1268,141) 1,194,325
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15 NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The group

2001 2000

£1000 £'000

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before interest (1,720} 26,367

Depreciation and impairment of tangicle fixed assets 74,663 43,028

Amortisation of goodwil 2,386 532

75,339 69,927

Associates (606) (467

Profit on sale of fixed assets (1,357) (3,006}

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 73,376 656,364
Mavement in working capital

Stock (582) (48)

Debtors 4,910 {6,549}

Creditors (7,482) 5915

{3,154) (682)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 70,222 65,682

if rental inventory, classified as fixed assets, were 10 be considered as working capital the net cash flow from operating

activities would have been subject to further adjustments as follows

The group

2001 2000

£'000 £:000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 70,222 65,682

Purchase of rental inventory {71,818) {72,316}

Disposal of rental inventary 21,055 21,548

Profit on sale of rental inventory 1,357 3,096

Adjusted net cash inflow from operating activities 20,816 11,010
16 RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBRT

‘The group

2001 2000

£'000 £'000

Decrease in cash (7,762) (8,864)

Cash movement from decrease in debt and lease financing and liquid resources {36,456) (6,102)

(44,218) (14,966)

New finance ieases (180) (1)

Loans acquired (1,394) -

Exchange movements 1,661 {(768)

Moverment in net debt (44,131} {15,738)

Net debt at 31 Dacember 2000 (38,190} (22,455)

Net debt at 31 December 2001 (82,321) (38,190)
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16 RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TQ MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT continued

Analysis of net debt

Acquisitions

At 31 excluding At 31

December cash/ Ciher Exchange  December

2000 Cash flow overdrafts non-cash  movements 2001

£000 E'000 £'000 £'000 £:000 £'000

Cash in hand and at bank 16,730 (7.977) - - (99) 8,654
Bank overdrafts {10,001) 215 - 271 (9,515)
6,729  (7,762) - - 172 (861)

Deposits 16,149 (14,075} - - {152) 1,922
Debt due within one vear (930) {594) - - 24 (1,500}
Debt due after cne year (59.824) (21,885) (240) - 1,610  {81,109)
Finance leases (244) 98 (454) (180} 7 (773)
Total (38,190) (44,218) (1,394) (180) 1,661 (82,321}

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Cash and liquid resources

Cash, for the purposes of the cash flow statement, comprises cash in hand and the deposits repayable on demand,
less overdrafts payable on demand.

Liguid resources are current investments which are disposable without curialing or disrupting the business and are
gither readily convertibie into known amounts of cash at or close to their carrying values or traded in an active market.
From time to time the group may have term deposits of less than one year (other than cash), government securities
and investments in money market funds. These are included in liquid resources.

Financial instruments disclosures

The group does not trade in financial instruments. Further details of the group’s policies and procedures relating
to financial instruments are included in the financial review. Shert term debtors and creditors {excluding deferred
consideration) have been omitted from all the following disclosures with the exception of the currency risk disclosures.

Interest rate risk and maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities
The financial assets of the group are sterling and euro denominated and include bank deposits at short term notice
periods of less than three months. Bank deposits earn floating rate interest.

Except as stated below the group’s financial liabilities are all at floating rates and comprise drawn euro bank facilities
which are mainly mulii-currency committed lines. The unutilised portion of these committed lines amounts to £21.8 milion
which is available to the group for terms in excess of three years at rates which float by reference o eurc UBOR.

Deferred consideration is not subject 1o any interest costs and the interest rate risk relating 1o finance leases is not
material.
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

The maturity profile of the group’s financial assets and liabilities was as follows

Bank deposits,
loans and Finance Deferred
overdrafts leases consideration Total Sterling Euros
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £:000 £:000
At 31 December 2001
Financial assets
In one year or less or on demand 10,576 - - 10,576 4,477 6,099
Financial liabilities
in one year or less or on demand (11,015} (48} (2,839) (13,900) - (13,9000
Between one and two years (38} {70} (5,258) (5,366) - (5,366)
Between two and five years (81,071} (B4} (189, {®1,814) (3550} (78,264)
Over five years - (103} - {103} - {(103)
Total [@2.124) (773) (8,286) (101,183} (3,550 (97,633)
(81,548) (773) {8,286) (90,607} 927  (91,834)
At 31 December 2000
Financial assets
In one year or less or on demand 32.879 - - 32,879 23,58¢ 9,280
Financial liabilities
In one year or less or on demand {10.931) (44) (342, (11,317 - {1,310
Between one and two years (372) 48) {5,255) (5,675) - (5,675)
Between two and five years {59,522) {108) {719)  {60,346) - (60,346)
Cwver five years - (47 - (a7) - (47)
Total (70,825) (244) 6,316) (77,385) - (77,385
(37,948} (244) (6,316) (44,508) 23,580  (68,095)

The above table includes foreign currency contracts which have been netted off against the related liabillity.
Currency exposures
There are no material assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than the local currency in any operating unit.

Substantially all borrowings are arranged by the group's treasury function and are denominated largely in sterling or

euros. The level of borrowings in euros is determined by the group’s palicy of hedging the currency exposure arising
frorn the euro denominated balance sheets of our European subsidiaries.

it is left to the operating company's discretion whether or not to put in place a hedge while debtor and creditor balances
remain outstanding.
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Set out below is a comparison by category of book values and fair values of ali the group’s financial assets and labilities
as at 31 December 2001.

2001 2000
Book value Fair value Book value Fair valus
£'900 £'000 £'000 000

Primary financial instrumants held ar issued
to finance the group’s operations
Short term borrowings and current portion

of long term borrowings (11,015} {11,015) (10,931} (10.931)
Leng tarm borrowings {81,109} {81,109) {59,894) (59,894)
Deferred consideration {8,286) {7,758) {6,318} B71Y
Finance leases (773) (736) (244} 232
Financial assets 10,576 10,576 32,879 32,879
Derivative financial instruments heid

te manage the balance sheet currency profile
Forward foreign currency contracts - 131 - {437

Total (90,607) (89,911) (44,506) (44,328)

Market values have been used to determine the fair value of the forward foreign currency contracts. The fair values of
all other items have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

18 ACQUISITIONS

Brammer Industrial Services

On 13 November 2000 the group announced that it had acquired THF, a German specialist industrial services business,
with effect from 2 January 2001. The group has acquired 51% of THF for a cash consideration of Euro 24.8 million
with put and call cptions 10 acguire the remaining 48% in 2003 for a consideration of Burp 23.8 million. The aroup is
further committed to paying a dividend of Euro 3.6 million to the minority shareholder. THF has been consolidated in
2001 as a full subsidiary as the group has effective 100% ownership.

The details of the acquisition are as follows

Accounting
Book policy Fair value
value adjustments to the group
£000 £000 £'000
Fixed assets 1,058 - 1,059
Investment in associales 2 - 2
Stock 16,137 (1.104) 15,033
Debtors 6,663 - 6,663
Creditors (£.,762) - 9,762)
Tax - (77) (77)
Bank overdrafts {8,651) - (8,651)
Net assets acquired 5,448 (1,181) 4,287
Expenses and related costs (730)
3,537
Furchase price
Paid 15,570
Deferred 17,226
32,796
Goodwill

29,259
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18 ACQUISITIONS continued

Net assets acquired have been restated in line with the group’s accounting policies. The stock adjustment stems from
the application of the group’s policy on the valuation of stock, where stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value and cost inctudes a proportion of procurement overheads. The deferred tax adjustment relates to the overheads

in stock adjustrment. The goodwill nas been capiialised as an intangible asset and will be written off over a perod of
twenty years.

On 21 March 2001 the group announced that it had acquired 74.95% of Anderlecht Bearing Service, a Belgian industrial
services business. The consideration was Eure 882,000 in cash. Of the remaining shares, 25% is owned by KNS, an
associats of Brammer plc, and 0.05% is owned by a private individual.

The details of this acquisition are as follows

Book and

fair value to

the group

£'000

Fixed assets 7
Stock 134
Debtors 308
Creditors {281)
Tax 12
Barnk overdrafts {2)
Loans 53)
Net assets acquired 125
Expenses and related costs 32)
93

Purchase price paid 431
Goodwill 338

The goodwill has been capitalised as an intangible assat and will be written off over a pericd of twenty years.

On 4 Cetober 2001 the group announced that it had acauired 100% of Rabinad, a Spanish specialist industrial services
business, for a consideration of Euro 2,966,000.

The details of the acquisition are as follows

Accounting Provisicnal
Book policy fair value to
value adjustments the group
000 £000 £'000
Fixed assets 332 7 253
Stock 517 {132) 385
Debtors 1,437 73) 1,364
Creditors (626) (131) {857)
Tax (78) - (78
Cash 124 - 124
Loans (598) - {H98)
Net assets acquired 1,208 {415) 783
Expenses and refated costs {67}
726
Purchase price
Paid 969
Deferred 936
1,905
Goodwil

1,179
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18 ACQUISITIONS continued

Net assets acquired have been restated in line with the group’s accounting policies. The fixed assets adjustment stems
from the application of the group’s depreciation accounting policy. The stock adjustrment relates to a provision for
obsolescence. The debtor’s adjustment stems from the applicaticn of the group’s policy on bad debt provisions, The
creditor's adjustment relates to the application of the group’'s policies on accruals for employee costs.

The fair value figures contain some provisional amounts which will be finalised in the 2002 financial statements after a

detailed acquisition investigation has been completed. The goodwill has been capitalised as an intangible asset and
will be written off over a period of twenty years.

On 4 October 2001 the group announced that it had acquired 100% of Canl Fischer, a German specialist industrial
services business, for a cash consideration of Euro 1,125,000.

The details of the acquisition are as follows

Book and

provisional

fair value ta

the group

£'000

Fixed assets 18
Stock 232
Debtors 361

Creditcrs (298)

Tax {66)
Cash 88

Loans (289)
Net assels acquired 46

Expenses and related costs (13)
33

Purchase price 677
Goodwil B44

The fair value figures contain some provisional amounts which will be finalised in the 2002 financial statements after a

detailed acquisition investigation has been completed. The goodwill has been capitalised as an intangible asset and
will be written off over a period of twenty years.

Adjustments have been made to the fair value {primarily fixed assets and creditors} of Somelec, acquired in 2000,
which resulted in a reduction in goodwill of £132,000.

Goodwill summary

The group

Total

£'000

THF 20,253
Anderlecht Bearing Service 338
Rabinad 1179
Fischer 644
Somelec — adjustment to goodwill previously recognised (138}

31,281
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18 ACQUISITIONS contirued

The negative group cash flow arising in 2001 from these acquisitions is as follows

The group
Total
£'000
35,809
{(18,162)
842

Purchase consideration
Deferred consideration
Expenses and related costs

18,489

Net cverdrafts acquired 8,441

26,930

All acguisitions were made by the Brammer Industrial Services division.

The figures shown in the “acquired” column on the profit and loss account relate to the four acquisitions in the year.

19 PENSIONS

The principal pension scheme operated by the group in the UK is a defined benefit scheme and provides benefits
related to service and salary. The scheme is funded by the group and contributions are paid in accordance with the
recommendations of the actuary. The scheme is open for membership to all permanent employees of UK based group
cornpanies aged 18 to 64 vears. The assets of the scheme are held in nominee accounts separate from the group'’s
finances under the control of the trustees. The trustees have forbidden investment in the share cagital of, or the investing
in any property assets used by, Brammer plc or any of its subsidiaries.

The latest actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 1 January 2000, using the projected unit method,
by an independent actuary employed by Watson Wyatt Partners. The assumptions which the actuary made that have
the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are those refated to the rate of raturn on investments and the
rates of increase in salaries and pensions. He assurmed that, over the long term, investment return will exceed the
increase in remuneration by 2.25% per annum and that present and future pensions will increase at the vate of 3% per
annum on pensions earned in excess of the guaranteed minimum pension. The valuation showed that the market value
of the schame's assets was £49.4 millicn and that the actuarial value of these assets represented 104% of the value
of the benefits that had accrued to members, after allowing for expected future increases in earnings.

The group also operates a final salary scheme for senior executives in the UK which is funded on the basis of the
recommendation of the actuary to the scheme.

The charge in the year for the schemes was £1,387,000. A prepayment of £680,000 is included in debtors, representing
the difference in amounts included in the profit and loss account and the amounts paid into these schemes.

On 31 December 2001 the current defined benefit scheme was closed to new members. A new defined contribution
scheme was launched on 1 January 2002 for new UK employees joining the group.
FRS 17 retirement benefits

The valuaticns used for FRS 17 disclosures have been based on the most recent valuations at 1 January 2000 updated
by Watson Wyatt Partners to take account of the requirements of FRS 17 in order to assess the liabilities of each of
ine schemes at 31 December 2001, Assets are stated at their market value at 31 December 2001,

The financial assumptions used to calculate liabilities under FRS 17 are

%

Discount rate

5.8
Inflation rate 2.5
Increases to pensions in payment 2.5

4.0
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19 PENSIONS continued

The assets held and the expected rate of return were

Value at
December

2001
£m

Equities
Fixed interest gits
Other {cash and net current assets)

Total market value of assets
Present value of pension liabilities
Deficit

Related deferred tax assat

32.0
9.2
27

Net pension liability

Net assets
Net assets excluding pension liability
Pension liability

Net assets including pension tialility

Reserves

Profit and loss reserve excluding pension liability
Pension liability

50.9
(51.7)

0.8
0.2

©0.6)

78.4
(0.6)

77.8

50.3
{0.6)

Profit and loss reserve including pension liability

20 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

49.7

There are no related party transactions cther than in relation to Jean-Marie Fink, details of which are given in the

remuneration report.




BRAMMER FIVE YEAR RECORD

2001 2000 199¢ 1998 1997
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Profit and loss
Turnover 372,284 287,326 242,190 238,369 223,055
Profit before goodwill, interest and exceptional items 24,402 26,899 20,324 24,570 30,718
Geodwill and excepticnal items {26,122} {532) {153) - -
Profit on ordinary activities before interest (1,720) 28,367 20,171 24,570 30,716
Net interest {6,097} (2,468} 869) B35) 216)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax {6,817} 23,899 19,302 23,935 30,500
Tax {19 (7,219} 5.818) {7,380 (9,098)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax {6,836) 16,680 13,486 16,555 21,402
Dividends (9,253} ©,123) (8,625) {8,393} {8,037)
Profit for the year retained in the business {(16,089) 7,557 4,791 8,182 13,365
Business analysis — Livingston
Turnover 131,634 113,380 74,362 54,341 42,075
Profit befora interest and excaptional items 10,410 13,160 9,312 8,559 6,659
Net operating assets 73,948 81,276 59,467 42,252 27,815
Business analysis — Brammer Industrial Services
Turnover 240,650 173,946 167,828 184,028 180,980
Profit before interest and exceptional items 11,596 13,207 10,859 16,011 24,057
Net operating assets 90,293 50,5614 48,473 51,884 47.018
Net assets employed
Goodwill and investment in associates 46,903 17,781 5,039 1,988 -
Tangible fixed assets 80,652 98,724 74,840 59,253 42,914
Cther working capital 36,686 15,275 28,261 32,195 31,919
Tax 2,521 8.311) {7.849) ©.223) (10,152
Net debt (82,321) {38,190) (22,455) (13,048 (3.487)
Dividends (6,031) 6,014 (5,763 (5,571) (5,414}
Financed by
Shareholders’ equity 78,410 79,275 71,873 66,294 55,780
Cash flow
Net cash inflow from operating activities 70,222 65,682 52,164 44,683 40,052
Intersst paid and received {4,571) (1,470} 869) {660} (363)
Tax paid {10,985} {6,493) (6,972) (8.388) (10,243
Net fixed assets movements — rental inventory {56,340) (50,695 (42.577) {31,253y (21.081)
Net fixed assets movements — other assets {5,786) (4,575} (4,244) {4,365} (4,083)
Acquisitions and disposals {27,977} 8,812 (4,630) {1,276} {4,105)
Dividends paid {8,236} (8,872) (8,503) {6,405) {6,762)
Firancing and managemenit of liquid resources 36,911 6,371 9,871 12,741 4,372
Movement in net cash (7,762) (8,864) (&,760) 5177 2,213)
Movement in debt, finance leases and liquid resources (38,030} 6,103) {8,714) (12,437) {3,378)
Exchange movements 1,661 (768) 5,067 {2,301) 2,530
Movement in net funds (44,131) (15,735 (9,407) (2,561) (3,061}
Ratios
Earnings per share — basic (14.3)p 35.0p 28.5p 35.2p 45.8p
Earnings per share - diluted {13.2)p 34.9p 28.4p 35.14p A5 1p
Interest cover {0.3)x 10.7x 23.2x 38.7x 142.2x
Earnings before intarast, tax, depraciation and amartisation 73,376 66,364 48,321 45,259 45,442
Cividend per share 18.3p 19.1p 18.3p 17.8p 17.2p
Return on investrment 24% 32% 28% 39% B61%
Gearing 105% 48% 31% 20% 6%

Net debt represents cash balances, including deposits, less overdrafts, all loans and finance lease commitments.
Return on investment is calculated as profit before tax (after adding back goodwill and exceptional items) to average
net assets employed. Gearing is calculated as net debt to closing shareholders’ eguity. The earnings per share figures
have besn adiusted for subsequent bonus issues of shares. In respect of the accounting policy change on foreign
exchange, 1999 and prior years have not been restated and the effect on 2000 is not material.
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BRAMMER NOTICE QF MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 82nd annual general meeting of Brammer plc will be held at The Goring Hotel, Beeston
Place, London SW1W 0JW on 30 April 2002 at 1:0Cpm and will deal with the following items of business

As ordinary business

1

- T B W N

To recelve the accounts of the company for the year ended 31 December 2001 and the reports of the directors
and the auditors.

To declare a final dividend.

To elect David Dunn as a director.

To re-elect lan Fraser as a director.

To re-elect David Hollywood as a director.

To re-elect Robert Hough as a director.

To re-appaint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor to the company and o authorise the directors to fix the auditor’s
remuneration.

As special business

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions. Resolutions 8 and 171 will be proposed as ordinary resclutions
and resoluticns 9 and 10 will be proposed as special resolutions.

3

That the directors e and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised 1o exercise all ine powers of
the company to allot relevant securities (as defined in section 80 of the Companies Act 1885) up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £3,191,010 provided that this authority shall expire on the earlier of the conclusicn of the next
annual genaral meeting of the company held after the passing of this resclution and 29 July 2003 provided that
the company may, before such expiry, make an offer or agresment which would or might require relevant securities

10 e allotted after such expiry and the board may allot relevant securities in gursuance of such offer or agreement
as if the authority conferrad hereby had not expired.

That subject to the passing of the previous resolution, the directors be and they are hereby empowered pursuant
to section 95 (1) of the Companies Act 1985 to allot equity sacurities {as definad in section 94 (2) of the said Act)
for cash pursuant to any authority conferred in accordance with section 80 of the said Act as if section 89 (1) of
the said Act did not apply to any such allotment providad that this power shall be limitad

(i) to the allotment of equity securities in connection with a rights issue or other issue in favour of ordinary
sharsholdars where the equity securities raspectively attributable to the interests of all ordinary shareholders
are propoertionate (as nearly as may be) to the respective numbers of ordinary shares held by them but subject
1o such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expadient in relation o

fractional entittements or legal or practical preblems under the laws of or the requirements of any recognised
regulatory body or any stock exchange in any country or territory; and

{ii} to the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph {}) of any equity securities up to an aggregate
nominal valug cf £478,652

and shall expire on the earlier of the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the company held after
the passing of this resolution and 29 July 2003 and that the company may, before such expiry, make an offer or
agreerment which wouid of might require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and the board may allot
relevant securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the authority conferrad hereby had not expired.




BRAMMER NOTICE OF MEETING

10 That the company be and is hereby generally and ungonditionally authorised 1o make market purchases (within

the meaning of section 183(3) of the Companies Act 1985) of ordinary shares of 20 pence each in the capital of
the company {'ordinary shares') provided that

11

By order of the board
Elizabeth Blease
Secretary

22 March 2002

0
{ii)

(iti)
fiv)

the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby autharised to be purchased is 4,786,515;

ine maxirnum price which may be paid for an ordinary share is an amount equal to 105% of the average of
the middle market quotations for an ordinary share as derived from the Daily Official List of The London Stock

Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the day on which the ordinary share is contracted
to be purchased, excluding expensas;

the minimum price which may be paid for each ordinary share is 20p excluding expenses; and

the authority hereby confarred shall expire on the earlier of the conclusion of the next annual general mesting
of the company held after the passing of this resolution and 29 July 2003 (except that the company may make
a confract to purchase its own shares under the authority hereby conferred prior to the expiry of such authority

which will or may be executed whelly or partly after the expiry of such authority and may make a purchass of
its own shares in pursuance of such contract).

That the directors of the company be authcrised to establish the Brammer pic Performance Share Plan {“the Plan™,
described in the document of which the notice containing this resolution forms part and to be constituted by the
rules produced in draft to this meeting and for the purpose of identification initialled by the chairman of the mesting,
and o do all such other things as may be necessary or desirable to carry the Plan into effect and that the directors
be authorised to establish further plans based on the Plan but maodified to take account of local tax, exchange
control or securilies laws in overseas territories provided that any shares in the company made available under
such further plans shall be treated as counting against any limits on individual or overall participation in the Plan.

Registered office
Station House
Starmford New Road
Altrincham

Cheshire WA14 1EP

Shareholders of the company who are entitied to vete at the meeting may appoint one or more proxies to attend and
(on a poll) vote instead of them. A proxy does not need 1o be a shareholder of the company. Te be valid, completed
proxy forms must be recelvad by the company’s registrar, Lloyds TSB Registrars, at The Causeway, Worthing, West
Sussex, BN99 671 no later than 1.00pm on Sunday, 28 April 2002. If shareholders complete and send back a proxy
form they can still come to the meeting and vote instead of their proxy if there is a poll.

Further to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2C01 only those shareholders registered in the
register of members of the company as at .00 pm on Sunday, 28 Aprit 2002 shall be entitled to attend or vote at this
annual general meeting in respect of the number of shares registered in their name at that time. Changes to entrias on

the relevant register after 6.00 pm on Sunday, 28 April 2002 will be disregarded in determining the rights of any person
1o attend or vote at the meeting.
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BRAMMER FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2002

30 April Annual general meeting at The Goring Hotel, Beeston Place, London SW1W O0Jw
31 May Record date

3 July Dividend payment date

September  Announcement of interim reslts 30 Jure 2

Announcement of interim results for the six months to 30 June 2002
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Brammer plc
Station House
Stamforgd New Road
Altrincham Cheshire
WA14 1EP England

Telephone +44 {0)161 928 3363
Facsimile +44 {0)161 §41 5742
enquiries@brammer.pic.uk
www.brammer.plc.uk
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BRAMMER SUPPLEMENTARY NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The group's original financial statements were circulated to members on 22 March 2002, Since the circulation of these
financial staterments the directors have identified that they did not comply with the requirements of the Companies Act
1985 in that share options and shares to be issued listed in note 7 to the financial statements should not have been
treated as being dilutive under FRS 14 — Earnings per share. Therefore dilted earnings per share for 2001 on page
32 of the financial statements should be a loss of 14.3 pence per share and not a loss of 13.2 pence per share as

stated. Accordingly, the supplementary note contains a revised note 7 to the financial statements on which the group’s
auditors also report.

7 EARNINGS PER SHARE

2001
Earnings/ 2000
Shares {losses) Shares Earnings
Profit numbers per share Profit numbers per share
£'000 000 pence £'000 000 pence
Profit for the financial year before exceptional
iterns and amortisation of goodwill 13,403 17,212
Average number of shares in issue 47,755 28.1 47,685 36.1
Exceptional itema (22,726} (47.6) -
Loss on termination of operations {1,000} {2.1) -
Taxation adjustment on exceptional items 5,883 12.3 -
Amortisation of goodwill (2,335) {4.9) 470) (1.0)
Amortisation of goodwill — associates 61) {0.1) (62) 0.1
(Loss)/profit for the financial year {6,836) (14.3) 16,680 35.0
Diitive equivalent of cutstanding share options - 176
Outstanding shares to be issued - -
Average number of shares in issue (diluted} 47,755 (14.3} 47,861 34.9

The earnings per share figure before exceptional items and goodwill amartisation is quoted to make the numbers more
useful to the reader. Outstanding share options and shares to be issued are antidilutive at 31 December 2001.

This note revises in certain respects the group's original financial staterments for the year ended 31 December 2001
and is to be treated as forming part of those financial statements. The financial staterments have been revised as at the

date of the original financial statements, 19 February 2002 and not as at the date of their revision, and accordingly do
nct deal with events between those dates.

Approved by the board of directors on 22 Aprit 2002 and signed on its behalf by

)

David Dunn John Gummi

2




BRAMMER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT to the members of Brammer plo

We have audited the group's revised financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2001 which camprise the
attached revised note 7 together with the original financial statements which were circulated to members on 22 March
2002 which comprised the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated balance sheet, the cormpany balance
sheet, the consclidated cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses, the

statement of accounting policies and the notes to the financial statements. The revised financial statements replace
the eriginal financial statements dated 19 February 2002.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom law and accounting standards are set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements,

United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board and the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authority.

We report to you our opinicn as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are preperly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the directors’ report is not consistent
with the financial statements, if the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit or if information specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding
directors’ remuneraticn and transactions is not disclosed, We are also required to report whether in our opinion the

original financial statements failed to comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 1985 in the respects identified
by the directors.

We read the other information contained in the annual report and consider the implications for our report if we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements, The other inforration
comprises only the chairman’s statement, the chief executive's review, the cperating reviews, the financial review, the
directors' report, the corporate governance statement and the remuneration report.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the company's compliance with the seven provisions
of the Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules, and we report if it dogs not. We are not required
to consider whether the board's statements on internal control cover all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s of group’s corporate governance procedures ov its risk and control procedures.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence refevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation
of the financial staternents and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate 1o the company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed. The audit of revised financial statements includes the performance of

additional procedures to assess whether the revisions made by the directors are appropriate and have been properly
made,

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence 1o give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinions

In our opinicn:

(1) The revised financial statements give a true and fair view, seen as at the date the original financial staterments were
approved, of the state of affairs of the company and the group as at 31 December 2001 and of the loss and cash
flows of the group for the year then ended and have beéen properly prepared in accordance with the provisions of

the Companies Act 1985 as they have effect under the Companies {Revision of Defective Accounts and Report)
Regulations 1980; and

(2} The original financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2001 failed to comply with the requirements of
the Companies Act 1985 in the respects identified by the directors in the attached supplementary note.

AL M\\w—»m(wx
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester
22 April 2002
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